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2020 12 31

TRP
2020 12 31
120,692,247
136,866,421 14,908,859
3,137,862 341,807
52,144 5,680
140,056,427 15,256,347
696,689 75,890
187,724 20,449
86,590 9,432
83,696 9,117
37,990 4,138
29,032 3,162
11,955 1,302
9,233 1,006
8,664 944
961 105
105,086 11,447
1,257,620 136,993
138,798,807 15,119,354
111,214,613 12,114,608
27,584,194 3,004,746
138,798,807 15,119,354
2,825,977,115
195,853 14,429
111,427,243
7,279,913 15.31 1,668

108.93

45/186



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

TRP

2020 12 31

3,484 380
3,484 380
448,606 48,867
193,246 21,050
129,109 14,064
92,291 10,053
20,705 2,255
15,712 1,712
10,474 1,141
2,045 223
127,164 13,852
1,039,352 113,217
(1,035,868) (112,837)
9,623,078 1,048,242
735,653 80,135
10,358,731 1,128,377
10,706,435 1,166,252
74,990 8,169
10,781,425 1,174,421
21,140,156 2,302,797
20,104,288 2,189,960

108.93
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2020 12 31

231,597
7,640,129

160,771
3,462,516

108.93
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(1,035,868) (112,837)
10,358,731 1,128,377
10,781,425 1,174,421
20,104,288 2,189,960
28,779,425 3,134,943

105,579,202 11,500,742

(19,488,973) (2,122,934)

(44,993,780) (4,901,172)
69,875,874 7,611,579
89,980,162 9,801,539
48,818,645 5,317,815

138,798,807 15,119,354
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108.93

TRP

2020 12 31
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20,104,288

(110,270,000)

2,189,960

(12,011,711)

41,926,000 4,566,999
(9,623,078) (1,048,242)
(10,706, 435) (1,166,252)
(77.377) (8,429)
54,987 5,990
(21,183) (2,307)
28,272 3,080
8,212 895

961 105

17,141 1,867
4,892 533
105,998 11,546
(56,304) (6,133)
58,859 6,412
(68,444,767) (7.455,688)
134,358,627 14,635,685
(65,449,484) (7.129,412)
68,909,143 7,506,273
464,376 50,584
2,673,486 291,223
3,137,862 341,807
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2020 12 31 2020 12 31
11,126 11.61 1,265
(213) (0.19) 1)
3,516 3.89 424
3,303 3.70 403
14,429 15.31 1,668
29.69 31.87
2,825,977 111,427 12,137,743
1.69 1.44
(1.69) (1.44)

@
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TRP
2020 12 31
(@D)
98.6
98.6
98.6
T Rowe Price Funds SICAV - US Blue Chip
5,420,452 ) . 98.6 136,866,421
Equity Fund Class 1
120,692,247 136,866,421
136,866,421
120,692,247 98.6 136,866,421
1.4 1,932,386
100.0 138,798,807
(15,119,354,047 )
2020 12 31

(@D
4,220 Alphabet, Inc. C 5.3 7,380,750
4,021 Amazon.com, Inc. 9.5 13,156,301
53,216 Apple, Inc. 5.1 7,101,081
32,292 Facebook, Inc. * A’ 6.4 8,871,992
32,512 Microsoft Corp. 5.2 7,201,348

108.93
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( )
( )
( ) ( ) ( )
B Broth 2021
rOWn BIOTReTs 25 124,522 (696,667) 1,910 1,910
Harriman & Co.
Brown Brothers 2021
Harriman & Co. 1,883 (194,918) ) )
1,910 (5) 1,905
( )
( )
( ) ( )
( )
Brown Brothers 2021
Harriman & Co. 25,555,513 )8 (246,576) 1,020 1,020
Brown Brothers 2021
Harriman & Co. 9,970,960 28 (96,424) 179 179
Brown Brothers 2021
Harriman & Co. 194,918 28 (1,883) ° °
Brown Brothers 2021
Harriman & Co. 33,214 28 (320) ! !
Brown Brothers 2021
Harriman & Co. 3,493,000 28 (33,782) 60 60
. 2021
Citi PB 3,217,500,451 28 (31,124,415) 48,422 48,422
- 2021
Citi PB 30,842,567 28 (298,272) 547 547
Brown Brothers 2021
Harriman & Co. 4,126,313 28 (426,649,259) (7,289) (7,289)
Brown Brothers 2021
1 1
Harriman & Co. 696,842 28 (72,124,522) (1,939) (1,939)
50,234 (9,228) 41,006
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2020 12 31
TRP
2018
2012 10 15
2009
2018

CIBC

UFJ PB

FASB

946

GAAP

14
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NAV

GAAP
GAAP

ASU  2015-07

2020 12 31

2020 12 31

52,144 52,144
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52,144 52,144
2020 12 31

(9,233) (9,233)

(9,233) (9,233)
FASB ASC 740

50
884,982 4,113
48
8,854,605 28 736,875
SICAV
SICAV us
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2010

2020 12 31

2019

2020

2019

2020

2020

12

12

12

12

12

31

31

31

31

31

(
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SICAV 2010 12 17
ucITs
CSSF
S&p 400
)
)
¢y )y )
12,799,567 36,019,078 48,818,645

28,779,425 105,579,202 134,358,627
(19,488,973)  (44,993,780)  (64,482,753)
5,281,545 14,822,743 20,104,288

27,371,564 111,427,243 138,798,807

125,027 3,102,300 3,227,327
231,597 7,640,129 7,871,726
(160,771) (3,462,516) (3.623,287)
195,853 7,279,913 7,475,766
139.76 15.31
10.00
10,000
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2018 27
2020 12 31
10
10
0.001 10,000
2020 12 31
2020 12 31 696,689
10
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ASC 815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA
2020 12 31 MNA
MNA
(O]
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 3,175 (3,175)
Citi PB 48,969 48,969
52,144 (3,175) 48,969
2020 12 31 MNA
MNA
(O]
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 9,233 (3,175) 6,058
9,233 (3,175) 6,058
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@
2020 12 31
52,144 9,233
2020 12 31
732,762 77,377
0.28
0.03 2.5 0.25 2.5
0.24 0.22
2020 12 31 193,246 2020 12 31 29,032
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
2020 12 31 129,109 2020
12 31 37,990
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15,712

2020 12 31
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0.015

2020 12 31



2020 12 31
31 8,664
10
2020 12 31
187,724
11
FATCA/CRS
12

1970
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0.03
20,705 2020 12
0.65
448,606 2020 12 31
140,000
1,500
0.65
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COVID-19
COVID-19
13
10
12
2020 12 31
14
15
2021 18
2021 2021 18 4,064,718
11,092,947
2021 2021 18 28,232,373
34,236,082
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

December 31, 2020

[Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Axpets:

Irveestestnns in Lnderying Furd, at fair value {ooat of USD 120,652.247)
L

Usrealzed approciation on onwand fo: g oomency Eahangs contraes
Total assets

Lisbslic hos:

Payasie for UST fedidees

Accrued disirioutoss lees

Accrued prodesyonal oy

dutrued onganitaion exmenies

Accryed Curbod a0 and Rub-adiministrator's fees
Aierued manggement fees

Rerued trusted fioes

Usrealzed deprecation on loreand Borelgn oomendy exchange comiraos
Arcrued agent comsany's hees

Arcred regiiration fees

CHier expenbes

Total Faadifies

et Avuits Attributable pa Unitholders

Mmabyils of Net At

Pad in captal

Teaal estributable carsings

et Assets Attributable to Unitholders

136,866 421
ERE RS )
51 144
TA0, A A F T

B 8
187,724
85,550
E
27,5950
o
11,955
5,13
BG4
961

1257 b0

LEE,

111,214,613
27,584,194
138,798,507

et Avuet Vahee por Unit
{RFY Mecged Clais JFF LEZI5,577.115 + 155,853 Linas cutstanding)

LIS Clans WSO 11142 T, 243 + 7279513 Units autstans ng)

The accompanying nates are ar integral part of these firancial statements.

63/186

14,425
1531



TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(Expressed in United States Dollar)
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IR e I Com:
Ivterest
Tota! lveestment lame

Expenses:
Earribunrifees
Management Sees
st an 37 SU Dead e rvstraioe s Pees
Profeatonal feses
Agent comaany's fees
Trustee fees
Transhir Age fotd
Regat-aton fee
T B Pres

Total Exgsendes

et Imve sttt Lovies

Rualied and Unreslized Gaiee/[Loioes]:
Realod gaaf| o)
Irvestmends Sabes of Under ying Fund
Ffiips Curnemcy TrarmACtions &= Torwied Toer gn currency exchige COALTac
Met reslized gains
Charge n uveallzed apprecationNdepreciation)
IPESEETs in Liadiertying Funal
Faniiga curmeaty Tava WTa and Forwasd FOneign cumresdy exchange oo mach
MET CRAngE in unaalined ApaMCALGn
ME PRl BEE AR UANEAIRES gaAL

et increase in net assets resultng from operations

The accompanying nates are ar integral part of these firancial statements.
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195146
179,108
92,791
10, 104
15,712
10,474
LGS
127,164

———— .

LS BS54

)
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735653
10358 131

10, 706,435

T4, 550
10, 7R1. 425
21,140,156
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TRF US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
[Expressed In United States Dollar)

Increnie ([Decieaie] in et Avieti from:

Dperations
W e strend s es L (1,035 BGLE)
Netrealired gains 10,354, 731
K1 Shange in LArealiteg ageceliation 10, 71,425
e Increane innet aieets neiiting from operatons 30,104, 268
Caphal Townwactin i
Lisies e
FFY Besged Cass {231,597 Units] IB, 719,425
LIPS Cla (7540, 129 Unas) 105,579,202
Uty redeemed
FFY Hecged Class (160,771 Units) {19,488, 973)
LISG Clidd (3,462 516 LAl 4599, HRO)
Wt I redse In et asets nedulting from caatal trantactions &R AT
Tatal Increae In Net st E9,980,162
LTS
Beg nning of year 48318 545
Eredl of year LIS0r 136, 7R B0T

The accompanying nates are ar integral part of these firancial statements.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(Expressed in United States Dollar)

Cauh Nlowi from cparating acithes:

et Increase Innet avsets rewiting from operatons (L] 30,104,248
LES L] il the et b in et aets reahting from operations to met canh used in

operating acthdties

Purchade ol inasstenemg 170,370, 000)
Procenca from vale and maturity of investnests 41,500, 000
Realired gara on inwestmends o securties 15623, 078]
CRRSE 4 AR RS BAEM AR 04 Imal (EFEATL {101, T, 4E5)
Chacge b rvealized sppiedalian on forwasd fone g currency exchicge contrack [#rarn

Change in aseets and Rabilites reated 1o operations:

Devreme in prepai avsets 54,987
Decreane in accnsed cushod am and u'b-adminairabor's fees (20, 1E3]
IS eade 5 aotrued probeisionsl feed 28,272
Increase o accrued trestee fees Bz
1PecrEase i ALCrued PEEIITaron b il
1BENEARE 9 MECFURE MAARDETEE TREL 17,141
Inecrease (= accrued agend company's fees 4,892
Irecrease i aocrued distributon bees 15, 9598
Detrpae in scroed 0fganizations’ expense {56, 304]
Increase = accrued ofher expenses 58,859
et cash [ued in) operating acthvities B4, 76T]
Cath flows provided bry Anancing activities:

Proceecs from Lnes Saued 134,358,627
Payrre Al o0 LISAs reder med 065, 44%, 4R4)
et cash pravided by financing acthihies 65900, 145
Wit ineraie in caih and fotelgn cirminy 454,376
Canm and fonegn currency at beg onng of year 24T ARG
Cath and fontign curmency o end of yea uin ERETR T

T accompanying nates are ar integral part of these firancial statements.
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TRF US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
FINAMNCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios
[Expressed in United States Daollar, unless otherwise indicated)

Y Hadged Clais USD Class
For the Year Ended For thee Year Bndied
I bas 31, O Decomber 31, 200
et Bt Wb, eyin g o year iy 11136 LSy 1161
Nt Dwpeitrend oy’ {215 0.5
et real e and wnealized galins 1516 ES-: ]
Nt imcrease im net aEs rewlting from operatons [T 1m
Wt At alue, end af years IRy 14,855 L E
TeAal return 6% Bare
RS e e AL St
et anaets end of year (000's) Iy LR 8T (L) 1nnazr
Fartan o ecpe rroes. o Average net aaets 1.69% 1.44%
Ritia of el it Iodded 1o aviedign S ddeh LR [1.aa%]

AR USAR A rage LINTE SUSEAI NG 107 1% YA,

T accompanying nates are ar integral part of these firancial statements.
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TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS
December 31, 2020
[Expressed in United States Dollar)
Numbar % of Nt
Currenty  od Sharen  Secsity Bescrignion Assers Parker Valus
ENVESTIAINT 1 UNDERL TING FLINGS | 6%
LI MIBCIRG (3845
LT LD (0%
use L¥E ] T Aare Brice Funds SE3 - LS Slue Chip Equity Fusd Gl 1° s a3 A1
TOTAL LUMENBORMRG|Cowt URSD 1200652, 247) ]!‘E‘J_ZI
BHVESTHENT IH LINDERLVING. FUND "!)!.&E
TOTAL WESTMENTS [Cost USD 120,892 247) SaE% (13 LB BEE AT
CASH AND OTHER ASSETS W EXCESS OF LIABILITIES LA IE!!!E
MIT ASSETS 1004%  uiD LEETIEDT

" There e five invealinests beld by 1 imestiment Comgaing for wisch ths Fund s groporionsl daie ol the it scends 5 ot of
ot iets o ol Dweerrker 55, 2000, investments are presented in ble below,

5 of Net
Cu Shares sy Areet Mavket Value
uin 4330 Alphubet nc, © 5 L5 TIELTSD
LSD &£0x A o e, L L L1 s 1158, 3500
uso sLFE Appde, inc. b b (%] Fa0E
(F.1+] L Faebonh, ni. & AR (E.5] LR
LsD AEEID Mfioresnll e, i 153 FAULMAR
Framd Livel Forwaed Farelgn Carrency Exchange Comiracta
Bt Lininealized
Metleaal  Sems [P g Uarsalizad [ Apprackstan/
Camire Amount  Date Sl Aot welation n
P Beoen Brothes Hanemen & o TLIZLSRE DLoAT] 5D (696, 6ET) LSO LBIDUSD = LSO 1800
USH e Brodhers Hantiman & o 1,883 Q10401 Y [ro4 812 - L] 15}
LS 18I0 150 {50 1825
JFY Hedged Class Forwaed Foreign Curnency Exchange Contracts
et Uinrealized
Motlonal  Setthement Kotcmal Unrzalieed Unredlied  Apgreciation
Lt Amount  Date Sell Aot wciation rarclathon
I e Brothers Hanenen & Co. FESSESLN  OLTA/RI1 LD [FHESTEY LSO LOA0 LD = LSD 1,03
I Sroeam Brochers Harmeman &0a S970,960 01/28/303 Y LSD {95, 4745 179 - 17
I Baorem Brochers Hamimen £ Co. 1998 QLTEMNR] V5D §1,BE3) 5 - 5
¥ Bereen Brochers Hamimen & o 1204 QLIRS LED EFi=] i - 1
150 Soowen Brochens Harimen & Cn RACO0 010 kD (LR o] L - L1
I i 3 IITECASL QL2021 USD (3L L3415 43472 - LLE k)
P (i P32 IMAEET CAIR2031 LED (208 2724 A7 = a7
LB B Bravchens Farriman & £o A1HMA OLRRSHT Y P06 EE0.208) = [ {7.344)
LAE  Srowm Broches Harreman & o EWAE  OLOASHTE I [TRIMEEN - 100 [ Aia)
211 S04 USD PRLFIESD 41,008
Curramsy legend
1=y loperese Yen
i it Dollar

Tha accomparying Fotes ane an integral part of these firancial statomaents
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TRF US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

CRGANIZATION

TEF US Core Growth Dguity Fund (the “Fund™) it 5 series prutt af the Nikko AN Offthore Furds, ar open-erded unit trud
establsked by a supplemental trust deed dated May 14, J18 [the “Supplemental Trust Deed®), under the lrws of the
Cayman Islands. Hikka AM Offshore Furds was established by a master trust deed dated October 15, 2002 {the “Master
Trust Deed®). under the lws of the Cayman Islancs and ks licensed with the Caymar Islancs Moretary Authority pursuant
ta sectian 4 1]1a) of the Butual Furds Law [2008 Bevigsor]. The Fund commenced operations on June X8, 2018,

The Fund's Jssets are maraged o 4 day to day basis by Miklka AM Glabal Cayman Limited [the “Manager™). The Managoer
SRIERATES IPESTMERT MAnagemert duties 1o Nikko Asser Mapagemert Co., Lid, [the “lesestmert Mamager™), The
Imvestment Manager may delegate responsibility for the management of the investmert anc re-investment of certain parts
of th Fund's imvestment portfolio to other irvestmiant maragers, The adminigratar of the Furd & delegated to Brown
Brathers Harriman & Co [the “Custodian™ and “Sub-Administrator®), a limited partnership organized urder the bsws of the
Srate of Mew York

Tha ipvestimery objectve af the Furd i 1o achieve grawth in the value of units over the lang term by Ewestieg inte a furd,
which imvests mainly in a diversified portfolio of stocks of large anc mediom skzed "blue chip® companies in the Urnied
States.

Urder the terms of the Supplemertal Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust

Compary (Cayman) Limited [formery CIBEC Bank ard Trust Compary (Caymar] Lmited] [the “Trustee™ and the
“AdministratorT] is named se Trustes of the Fund.

The Marager appairmed Masubishi UF) Mongan Stackey PB Securities Co., Lvd To act a4 Agert Company [the “Agent
Company®] ard to act as Distributor (the “Distributor”) of Units in Japan.

SUMNARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Fund & an Investment Company that follows the accounting and repoming guidance in FASB Actounting Stancards
Codification 544,

Use of Estimates

The stcamparying finandisl statements kave boen prapared in acoarcance with steaurting principles gererally sccepted in
the United States of America [*ULS. GAAPT]. The preparation of financla| statements in accordance with U5, SAAF requines
the Furd's maragement 1o make edimates and didumptiond that sifect the repamed amounts of sisets and lisbiiies and
disclosures of contingent assets and lablinkes ar the date of the financhl satemerts and the reponed amounts of
rEverued and eapirded duning the reporting period. Actual results, including the witimate amourt realized upon the wake of
fair valued investments, could differ from those estimates and such cifferences may be significart.

Basis of Accounting

Security and contractual Tranictions ane reconded an & tradefoontract-0ate Batk. Intensst intame i recorded on an
effective yiekd basks, not of any applicable withhalding tax, Interest expense and other oxpenses are mcorced on an accrual
basis. Reslized gaied Jnd okt from Securily DANKIETIGNS Are CompuTed on the Basi of the Jverage cost af the Lecurities
sokd or covernd, Charges I the valuation of Irvestmeets are recorded in the Statemant of Operatiors a5 unrealized
appreciatian ar depreciatior.

Viluation of lavestments
Ipvestmars in ather imvestment companies [“hedge furds™) are valued on the basis of the Net Asset Value ["MAV) per
shkare as reported by the administrators of those entities at the meascremert date based upon policies and prooodu nes

adopted by the Fund, In cases where the Furd could in the nommal course of busieess redeem its urderhying imvestment,
such investments are gererally valued at the net azset valuations praviced by the adminstrators of those entities.

I cazes wherne the Furd is urable to redeem its urderlying investment, such investments in portfolio furds are alsa valued
AU ERE et asset viluations proviced By the adminmtraton of those entities, proviced that the urdedying pomfolio funds
hawe cakulited their ret asset valuations in accordance with acoounting measurement guidance whick is applicable 1o
INVESTMENT COMPAr s &8, Ifvestments wihin such urderlying investmart companies have bogn fair valved in agcordarce
with applicable US. GAAP, unless the Irvestmert Manager determines that such a valvation would not be the maost
approgriste irdicator of fair value, ie which cage the investmert waould be faic valued by the Investment Marager.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

SUMPMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLUNTING POLICIES [continsed)

Viluerion of lavestments fcontinued)

Ir secordarmos with the autkaritative guidance an fair value medturements nd ciclosures under LS. GARAPR, the Fund
dischoses the fair walue of its inwestmerts ina Fierarchy tRat prioritizes the inputs fo valuation techrigues wsed to measure
the fair viloe, Thie hieraehy gived the Bgkedt gricdily i vAlLItEand Baded Upod UnbEjuites uatid pratid in JeThee marketd
for ertical assets or Babilities {level 1 measurement] ard the lowest prority 1o valuations based wpor unobsersaable
inputs that are significant 1o the valuation (Level 3 measurements]. The guidance establshes three levels of the fair value
hieranchy as follows

L Lvel 1 = Inputs that redlect unadjusted guoted prices i aotive markets for identical imvestmeets that the Fund
has the ability to access at the measurement cate;

*  Lewvel 2 - Irputs other than quated prices that are significant snd obiervable for the Jsdet or lishday either
cirectly or incirectly, including mputs in markets that am not considored 10 be acthe

*  Lewel 2 - Inputs that are significant ard unobservable.

Irputs are used i applying the vanous valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptiors that madeet participants
use to make valuation decksiors, inclucing assumptions abawt risk, Inputs may include price information, specific and broad
oredit data, liquidity statiktics, and other factars. A finarcial instrumert's level within the fair value hierandhy is based upan
the lowess level of ary irput that is significart to the fair value messuremert. However, the determination of what
carstitutes “observable”™ requires sigrificart juogment by the Investmert Marager. The Investmeent Marager corsicers
observable data to b market cata which is neadily ilable, regulardy distnb ¢ or updamed, reliable and verifiable, not
proprietany, and provided by independert sources that are actively irvobeed in the relevant market. The categorization of a
fanarcial irStrument withis the hierancky i based upar the priciag transparency af the instru mert 1ns dodt Far FecesLily
carrespond ta the Investment Manager's perceived risk of that instrument.

Imvestmaents whaose values are based on the guoted market prices in actve markets, and therefons classified within Level 1,
winld inclugde scthiely traced eguitics, cemain WA governmart ard soverign chligations, and comain maney market
socurities, The Ipvestmert Manager would rat adjust the cuoted price for such instruments, even in situations where the
Fursd Batld 3 lange position ard a sale could redsanably impact the quoted price.

Irweiemertd that trade in markerd that sre ral cordidered 1o be active, but are valued Baded ar quated marker priced,
Sealer ¢ LOTATOrS or ANRIMATAE Prcieg SOUFCRS SLppaed by abservable nputs ane classifiod within Lowel 2, These include
invesU et grade debt decurities, shom-term irvestments and forwand fareign curnency exchardi conRtrac, As Level 2
investments inchude positons that ane not traced in actke mariets andfor ame subject to trarsfer restrictions, valuations
may be adjusted to reflect liguidity andfor non-trarsferabiity, which are generally based on available market irformatian.

Irwestmerts clissified within Level 3 have sigrificart unobservable inputs, as they would trade irfrequently. Level 3
instrumants would inclece asset-backed spcuritms and collateralaes mortgage obligations. As observable prices are not
awvailable for those seourities, the Fund woule use waluation technigues to derkoe the fair value,

The inputs or methoodalogy used far valuing securities are rot recessanily an indication of the risk associated with investing
in ERase SRCy Mt

I accarcance with ASU JUS-07, the Fund's ipvestment i ather imvestment Lompanies Pag oot been cateponzed in the
fair value hizrarchy rar in a rall farward of irvestment activity.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

SUMNUERY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continwed)
Waluarion of lavestments feanrinued]
Tha foliowing table preseets the firancial instruements cannied on the Statement of Astets and Liabilities by caption and by

kevel within the walvation hierarchy as of December 31, 3020, Further classifications of the finarcial irstruments are
presected in the Portalo of Ievestme rts.

Aszets at Falr Value Falr Value at
Lol 1 Lirvel 2 Lewel 3 Decembier 31, 200
Ferward Foeoeign Curmeny
Exchange Combracts usn = usp 52,144 st - 5D 52,184
Tevtal LI - LD 53,144 Usn - L0 52,144
Liabdlities a1 Fair Valee Falr Value at
Lawd L Ll 2 Level 3 Dercemnbier 31, 200
Ferward Focegn Currenty
ExChange Combracts s - LS [ c I 1) - usp (5.233)
Teal LIED - LiE0 18, 133] LISk - LD %2330
Forelgn Currency Transimtion

Aspets and labilities held in currencies other thas Usited States Dollar (TUSD® or the “Functional Cumrency”) are Translaned
to the: Furctiznal Currency at the rate of cachange prevailing at the financial statement date. Ircome and cxpenses are
tranclated at the rate of exchanpe prevailing at the cote an which the ircome of expense i ircurred. Reakned and
urrealized gains anc losses arkirg on foreign currency transactions are included in the Statement of Operations in the
peeriad in which they eotur

The Furd does not Balate that porion of the results of operatiars resulting from changes in foreign excharge @1es on
imvestments from the fluctuations arising from changes in market prices of securities hold, Such fluctuatiors ang ncluded
with the net realized and unrealited gain or lazs from irvestments.

Incame Toxes

Urder thi durnr liws of the Cayman lslanes, thene ane no imtome, withhokiieg, copitsl goies or cther Taxes payable by
the Furd. In certain jurisdictions ather than the Cyyman Islands, foreign tanes may be withheld at source on dividends and
inmurest recoibind by the Fund, Capital gaies cerived by the Fund in such jursdictions generally will Be eoempt fram foneign
income ar withholkdirg tawes at source, The Fund irtencs to conduct its affairs such that it will rot be subject to income tax
in any jurisdictior. As a result, no provisien for incone taxes kas besn made in the finarcial stacements. Unithalkders may
be taxed an their proportorate share of the Fund's tax bask income based an their individwal cicumetanoes.

The Fund follows the avthorgatke guidarce or accourting for ard cisclosure of uncertainty bn tax posiviors (Fenancial
Actourting Stancards Board ["FASE") - Accounting Stancsrds Codification TA0), which recuired the Manages 1o determing
whether 3 tax position of the Fund is more likely than rot to be sustained upor cxamiration by the applicable taxing
authodity, including resolution of any related appeals of litigation processes, based on the techaical merits of the poskion
For tax positiors mesting the mare Biely thar nat threskolo, the taw berefit recogrized in the financial satemerts s
recuced by the HII'EEH benefit that hat a Ereater thar fifty percent likelihood of Ml"‘ realited wpan LRimate settlement
with the relevans taxing avtharity, The Manager has determined that thene i micimal or no effect on the finarcial
SEatemants being under thie avthoritative guicance.

Forward Fareign Lurrensy Exchange Contracts

Thke Fund may enter into forward forelge corrercy sxchangs contracts to booge against forelgn currency exchange rate
risks on all ar a2 padtion of rar-USD deramirated investments or far efficiert portfalic maragement purpeses. When
ertering inte a forward foregn currency eachange cortract, the Fund agrees to receive or celiver a fed guantity of
foreign currency for ar agresd-upon price an an agreed future date, These contracts are valued daily, and the Fund's net
eguity thereie, mpresenting enasalized appreciationf{coprecation) or the cortrcts a8 measemd by the differerce
between the forward foreign currency exchange rates at the dates of ertry imto the contracts and the foreard rates at the
reparting date, is included in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, Realized and unrealoed galrs and bosses am included
in the Statemert of Operations.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Forward Forelgn Cormency Exchonge Controcts (rontinued)

Thise irstruments irvalve market sk, eredit cisk, o Bath kirds of risks, in excess of the amourt recogrised in the
Statemert of Assets and Liabilities. Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their
coriaets and fram movement it Curreney Ard SOCLimies valus b iPTeredt rates. In Jadnaor 1o the Clads kvel Fadging,
the Furd kad realized loss of USD 4,113 an 5 forward foreign currercy enchange contracts during the year with an sverage
ratioral of USD BA4.932 ang an average term 1o maturty of 9 days. The Fund hag net realiped gaie of LISD 736,875 an 48
forward foreign currency exchange contracts beld at the 1PY Hedged Class leved durning the year with an average rotional of
USD 8,854,805 and an average term to maturity of J8.days.

Cosh ond Fareign Currency
Cash and fﬂl‘ﬂﬂﬁ curengy camprises all curmency Beld with Brown Broghers Harmimae B o, ane ovennighs and ather shom
term placements with atber finarcial institutions.

INVESTMENT IM THE LUMDERLY ING FUND

The Fund shall primarily invest in shares of US Blue Chip Equity Fund [the “Underlying Furd”], a sub-fund of T. Rowe Price
Furds SICAN, 3 socidnd & ievestissemert b capital variable ["SICAVT) estabilished urder the laws of Lusembourg. The SICAV
qualifies a5 an Urdertaking for Collective Investmert in Trarsforable Securities |(“UCITS"] under Fart L of the Lusembourg
law of December 17, 2010 or urdertakings for collective investment {the " 2000 Law”) ard is registered an the afficial list of
callective investment uncertakings mairtained by the & lsion de Sundeillance du Secteur Finarcier [ SCSSF7).

The objective of the Urderhing Fund s 1o Increase the value of its shanes, over the larg term thracgh growth in the value
of itd inveatments, by vetieg maieky in 3 diveriiied porfolia of stocks of 1B ane Medim LBed “Blue chip” comparies
in the Urited S1ates,

Specifically, the Underlying Fung imeests at keast twothinds of total assets in equity and equity-related securities of
companies that are either incarparated in the Urited States of Americas or corduct mest of their business there, that have
a market capitalsation egual o of greater than the campanies in the Russell Mic-cap Ingex o SEP Mid-cap 00 Irdex, anc
that hawve a leading market position, seasoned managemert and strang finardal fundamentaks. Types of securities may
incluce comenan stacks, preferred stocks, warmants, Amaercan Depostory Receipts (“ADRs"), Evrapean Depostory Receipts
["ECRs") and Global epository Receipts ["GDRs"].

The Underying Furd coes not irvest mare than one-third of #1 2sets in cebt and marey market securities.
The Underdying Furd may use cerivatives for hedging and effickert portfolio maragement.

The Urderlying Furd's firancial statements ane prepared urder generally acorpted accounting prirciples in Luaembourg
and the accounting policies of the Underying Funds are substartislly corsistent with those of the Fund. Units of the
Urderlying Fund may be receemed on cach Busiress Day.

UNITS

The net assets of the Fund are divided into JPY Hedged Class Units and USD Class Units. The Urits are denominated in
laparese Yen and United States Dollar. JFY Class Units and USD Class Units ane available ta an eligible investar who & ary
persad, corporation of amity which i sot ([ 2 US Investors” (as defined below) () 3 persen of entity resident of
domiciled in the Cayman lslands [exchuding ary object of a charitable trust or pawer or an exempled or non-resident
Cayenan lslancs compary]; (i) unable to subscribs for or Pold Units witheut vielating applicable lws; and (i) a custadian,
namines, o truites far Jny peron, corporatian of entity described i (1) 1 (5] above, o suck ather persant, tarparation
or entithes 35 deverméned firam time to time by the Manager, with the approwval of the Trustes,

While 31 e qubstantially o of the Jeoers of the Fune may Be Beld in US. Dallars, it i4 irtended for the Furd to erter inte
hedgirg arrangemerts for the berefi of IPY Hedped Class Urits, which are ceramirated in lapanese Yen. Those
arrargermens will B 1o bodge againsy adverse mavements af the currercy of deromiration of the innmstments in the
Series Trust relatien to Yen. Any profits, gains, bosses, costs, income and exponditune assoclabed with such hedging
arrargements will be Borne by IPY Hedpged Cliss Units.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

LUNITS {cemtinued)

For the year enced December 31, 2020, the notional exposure on the JFY Hedged Cliss forward currency exchange
cortracts approvimated the average ret assets for JFY Hecged Class being net lorg IFY and skart USD. Open contracts at
yoar e ane dlgchosed in the Porfalis of Inveame s

The Marager may determine 1o Biue one of mone clistes of Units of the Fund without priar ratice T or written content of
the Unithplders

Al af the not assats attributable to JFY Hedged Clags Units and USD Class Unins are keld by ane Unitholder,

i biedged Clan S Clans Total Fund
Raance a1 D cerser 31, 2019 B0 1L799567 ASD GOIGOTE USD 4881645
Satacriptions duriog the year SB A ALS 1055000 TH AGH AT
Ribghi= T uring Ihe year (15, 48R.973] (44,593, 7] |64, 88T Ta3)
Bt Imeragse Im net svsets resuiting from operationa bJ!II._n' LE] 14572 148 S0 N0, 2HE
bt Aot at Decesber 31, 203 UsD  FPATEGR4 USD 111437 343 USD  138.798.BOT
Nember of Unis in swe & Decermser 31, 2019 10y 008, 500 R rry
Uins med durieg toe year TI0.597 T 40, 19 TAF, T
LIS8S e & sing B e {160.771] {3,462 516] {LEIEIAT)
Humber of Unfit in ssue ai Decermoer 31, HIZ0 155,853 72734913 T AT, A
Mot Aaget Viue e LRt 31 Detemer 31, 2020 usD 130,96 USD 15,30

Swhseriptions for Units

USD Class Urits were subserbed for by Digible Investors during the Ingial Offer Period a1 the initial purchase price of USD
10000 per Uit JPY Hecped Class Unis were subscribed for by Elgible Irvestors dunng the Initlal Offer Penod at the initial
purchase price of IFY 10,000 per Unit. The initia] Offer Pedod commenced o Jure 18, 2008 ard ended on June 37, 2018 in
addition to the subscription price, the applicant shall pay a sales charge cakulated at up to 3% fexcluding ary tax
applicable) of the purchase price, ta the Distributor. There wene no sales changes paid during the year ended December 31,
2020,

During the Initial Offer Pariod, the minimum subscriptior for LSD Class Urits per subscriber was 10 Units or move, and in
muttiples af 1 Unit thereafter. Durirg the Initial Sffer Perioc, the minimum initial subscription far 1FY Hedgeo Class Units
per subscriber was L Unit or mone, and in mutiples of 1 Units thereafier,

On ard after the Iraia] Closing Dy, TR minimum subseription for USD Class Uris per Usithekier & either 10 Upits a0
mare, and in multiples of 0001 Units thereafter or USD 100, ard in muktiples of USD 0,00 thereafter. Om and after the
Iriial Closing Day, the minimuen subseription for JFY Hedged Class Units per Urithedder i either 1 Unit o mare, ard in
miuftiples of 0.000 Urits thereafter or 1P 100000 and in muRiples of 187 1 themmaftor.

The Marager may waive ar change the minimum initial and additional subscription amourts set forth above in its sole
diseretion from time b time,

Uit Redemptions

Thke Fund recogrizes recemptions in accordarce with the avthonitative guidanoe on distimguishieg labilities from eguity.
Red emptians, whether expressed as Unived States Dallar, lapanese Yen or Units, are recogrized 25 Babilities when each of
the Japanese Yen ard United States Dollar Urit amounts requested in the redemption notioe becomes fimed, which
pecerally may oocur sither at the time of the receipt af the ratice, or on the last day of 3 fiscal year, depending on the
ranre of the reguest. As 2 resubt, mdemptions pakd after the eed of the wear, but based upoe year erd net J5EeTs ane
reflected as redemptions payable at December 31, 2030, There wene USD &96,628 ard IFY nil of redemptions payable as at
Decombser 31, 2020 inchuded as Payable for Units receamed In the Statement of Assets ard Lisbilities,

Repurchese af Units
Units may be repurchased at the option of Unithalders on each Repurchase Doy [means each Valuation Day, or such ather
day or days a4 the Marager may fram time to time determine in respect of the Series Trus).

Unithalgers wisking 10 Pave Units repurchased mus serd a completed Repurchase Notice to the Digributor so a5 o be
received by the Distributor no later thar 3:00 p.m. {Tokyo time] on the relevant Reperchase Day. The Distrbutor will send
the completed Repurchase Matices to the Sub-Admirstratar by ro later than 600 pm. (Tokyo time] an the relevant
Repurchase Day or by such ather time as the Sub-Administrator may in any paticular case cetermine.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

UMNITS {continued]
Repurchese of Uinits (continued)

If the rebevant Repurchage Notioe s pot receked by the Sub-Adminktrator by the relivant time, the Repurckase Hotice will
be held over until the next Repurchase Day and Units will then be recdeemed at the relewant repurchase price applicabile on
that Repurchase Day. In the event either the day sfter the relevart Dealing Day ar the day falling twa days after the
relevart Dealing Day & 3 day on which barks or stock exchanges in lapan are not apen for rormal business, ary
Repurchade Natios reteived an tuch Dealing Dury, dhall not B2 acoepted ard instead, will e Jcoppred on the rext Daaling
Dy,

A Repurchase Noticn, arce ghen, is irnrvwocable,

Compulsory Redemption

Ir thie evert that the Trustee or the Marager shall determing that any Units of any class of a Furd are being held by ar for
the beraf of a person whe i nat ar Elgible Investar for such Fung or that such Poleing would cause the Trust or the Furd
to b requined to register, be subject to tax or violate the laws of any junsdiction, or if the Trustee or the Manager has
reagar to coubt the kegitimacy of the source of monies used to fund the subscription or purckase of such Unies, or for
whatever reason [which may not be disclosed By the Trustee or the Marager to Unithalders) that the Trustee or the
Marager cordiders appropeiste a1 its sbsalute ciscration having regare to the interests of the Unitkakders of the relevart
Class or the Unitholders of the Fund as a whale, then the Marager, after corsultation with the Trustes, may direct the
halger thenpof 1o soll (subsect 1o the provisiors cescribed below in the sectior headed “Trarsfer of Ungs™) sweh Units
within 10 cays and provide to the Truster ard the Manager evicerce of such sale, faling which the Manager may redeem
sk Units,

Termination of the Fund
Upan tereiratior, the Manager will realize all the assets of the Fued, and after paying out or mtaining adeguate provision
far all liabiliies properly payable and retairing peovision for the coms of the termiration, the Trustee shall distribute the
proceeds of that realization to the Unitkalders proportionately to their respective intorests im the Fund as of the date of
termination of the Fund.

Détributions to Uaitholders

The Marager may, from time 1o tme, in s sole ducretior, ceclare distributions from May 2019, Distribution will be
dockired dnnially on cack Distribution Regand Date dad cakeulited an aach Ex-Distribution Date. Distribation Perod id a
period commercing from the calendar day following the precedieg Ditribution Record Date and ending on ard includieg
the Distribution Becord Date. The distributiors will be paid on the relevart Distrbution Payment Date, proviced that suck
amount [if ary) declared with mapect to the relevant Class of Units in respect of the applcable Distribution Period shall
anly be paid aut of the Fund's net income, realized ard unrealized capital gains ard any detibutable funds of the Furd
artributable to sweh Class of Unigs as devermined by the Marager.

Tha declamation of distributions to Uritholdors reduces the Class Level Net Asset Value per Urit without ary cormspond ing
charge in the rumber of Class Level Urits per Unitholder. This results in a Unitholder's overall irvestmeert in the Fund
being mecuoed, In addition, any distributions during a period which are in exorss of the Fund's net inorease in net assets
resulting from operations results in & partion of the distribution beirg return of capital.

The amount of distributions, f any, will be determined by the Manager in its sole discretion, and no representation ar
Buarkrted B made That b distrbution will Be mace ir respect af each or any DEvnbution Period.

Copitafiration

Tk Net Asset Value por Unit is calculated for each Dealing Day (each Valuation Day, or such other cay or days as the
Marager may from time to time determine in respect of the Fund], by aividing the difference in value between the Fund's
assets ard labikes [including accrued fees ang expenses of the Furd) by the number of Urss ourstardinrg

Tha Teust Deed stipulates that the mueber of Units to be sswed in the Furd shall be unlimied as the Marager shall
determine and shall be without par value.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accourting Stardard Cocification [ASC] 1% 10-50 neguires discl about d tive instruments ard bedging activities.
It reguires that the Fund disclose: a) kow and why am ertity Loes dervative instnements, b) henw deriathe instruments and
related bedged tems are accounted for ard cf bow cerfeative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity's
finarcial pasition, financial perfarmaree and cash flaws.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

DERPVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

The Fune trarsacts forwarnd derivative instrumarts primanly far Rocging purposes with each irgtruments primary fisk
exposure being foreign excharge rsk. The feraard foreign currency exchange cortracts held by the Furd do not gualify as
hedpes for accounting purposes wnder the requiremarts of ASC 815, The fair value of these darivathe instruments s
included in the Statement of Assets and Liabilses with changes in fair value reflected as realized gainsf{losses) or net
charge in wnnedlized appreciatinfde preciation) o derwtives within the 51 of Dperations [Neve 2),

The Fund may ented intd an International Swaps ang Donvative Adtoduation, Ing. Madtoer Ageeemsder (TISDA Master
Agreement”] with its counterparties in order to mitigate counterparty risk. The BDA Master Agreement s typically
negatiated by the Fund and its counterparties, cartaining the bi-lateral terms and canditions far all subsequert derative
tranzactiors. The 1504 Master Agreoment allows for the retting of all amourts awed to ar due from courterparty into 3
singhe ret paymert i a creclt edent of default skould eccur.

The Furd Ras elected 8o not offset fair value receivables and payables for derivative contracts on the face of the Statement
of Assets ard Liablities,

At December 31, 2020 the Fund had entered irta the following denvative assets by countenparty net of amownts availa ble
far offeet under b Mastir Metting Agreemant ["MNAT] nd net of dey callateral récendd by thi Fund:

Drheative Aty Darivath Non-caih Caik Nt Amount of
Counterparty Subject 1o 3MNA _Avallable for Offset Collateral Recehved Collateral Recehved Derkathe Auets'
Hromrs Brathuers Marrinans & Ca LA LTS 6D {RATIILISD — LS ~Uahk -
criee 85545 a8 969
Tatal E] 52,144 LUSD {3,075) UsD - usp -~ usp 45,5968

At December 31, X020 the Fund had ertered irto the following denivative liabilities. by counterparty net of amounts
available for offiet woder & MNA Snd ret af any callateral pledged by the Furd:

Deribvative Mt Ameantof
Counteparty LiabBities Darhvathes Non-cah Cask Durkeashe
to @ MhA  Avallable for Offset Collateral Collateral Liabitithes !
Browin Brothers Marriman & Co. E S LSO {3,175 LD — LISk — LIS hu
Tatal '+ T {RATS) USD —Usn —usD [T
1 Mot armsuet Pl the fet ameum! rerkies| Bl feoer he paity iF the et of defiul

At Deoembeer 31, 2000 the Furd bad entered ingo the following dervatives:

Asset Dervathes E Dsribira thies

Dervatives Statement Statenent

ot Accownted for a1 of fuinti and of Astets and

Medging I truments Liahilities Lecation Falr valoe Liahilitle Location Fair Value

Forwand foneigs curresty  Uncealised appreciafion Uinmealned depreciatan

emt hanpe Conk racks on forasnd forelgn onBorwand foregn

JCusrency Rak) £t Sy FRERARGE L&D 51144 currency exchasgn use %233
EEAracs LOaET

The effect of derimtine instr uments oa the Statement of Cperations for the year ended Deoember 31, J020:

Debfivithvic Nat

Acrnunted Lecatian of Realized Chunge in Lirsealived

Tior 2 Hadping Gaim or fLoas) Gain or {Loas) Appreciation of (Depreciation) om
o Darhvath o Dar Derhathes

et realTed gainon foreand foregn
Forwasd fOnEign CUMETEY  CUNENCY EXChatge contratt;
EwChAnge Cont racts change in unoealiped appreciation on forward
L reney RAk) TOAF R £u rreAEY 0 A et o) 742,762 WED 1,377
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

MANAGEMENT FEES

The Marager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Furd a management fee of a total of up to 0.28% per annum
[0U03% per annum b respect of the feo for the Marager ard 0.25% per annum for the portien of the Bet Asset Value upto
UsE 250 millien, 0. 24% per annum for the portion of the Het Asset Value ower USD 250 million up to USD 500 millien and
0.22% per annum for the portion of the Met Asset Value ower USD 500 milllon in respect of fer for the Investment
Marager) of the Net Awset Value acerued on, and calculited s 51, each Valustian Day ard payable marthly i arcesrs. s
agdition, the Manager is ako entitled 1o be reimbureed aut of the assets of the Fund for any expenses incunned by it in the
proper performance of its powers and duties as permitted under the Master Trust Deed.

During the wear ended December 31, 3020, the Manager carred fres of USD 193,246, of which USD 29,022 i still
outstardieg 34 of December 31, 2020

The Manages will pay the feos of the Investment Marager aut of it fees, The Imvestiment Manager will Be respartible far
payirg the fers of any of its delegates or other parties appairted by the Irvestment Manrager to perform its functions in
respect of the Fund; provided, haweser, the Investment Marager may cRarge 3 transaction fee o the subscriptions and
mecemptions of shares of the Underlying Fund.

CUSTOMAN AND SUB-ADNMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Fund kas 4 custody and accaunting agreement with Brawn Brothers Hardiman & Co. [the “Custodian™ and “Sub-
Adenieistrater”) for which the Custocian recebres a fer calculsted and pake moenthly based on total assets and wransaction
wolumee.

The Custodian ard Sub-Administratar i entitled to receive out of the asets of the Fund an administration fee [including
teansler agent fee) on the Net Astet Value Jccrued on, and caleulated as au, each Valuation Day an the following anrual
rata:
- 0OTH up to (and including] USD 250 milkan;

0.06% up to (and including] USD 500 milkan;
- DU05% awer LISD 500 millian.

Such acminitration fee B payable monthly in arresrs, and subject 1o the mirimum sneval fee of USD 60L000, The Sub-
Ademiristrator ks also arthled to recehos out of the assets of the Fund foes for currercy adminbstration and execution
sendces AT The rate of 0.05% per annum of the Met Asiet Value of the relevast Uait Class, subject To the minimum ancual
feor of USD 50,000 In adcition, the Custodian and Sub-Administrator is ako entithed to reonive customany safekneping fees
and transaction charges. All sut-of packet expenses of the (ustodian ard Sub-Administeatar thall Ak be barne by the
Furd. Dwring the year erded December 31, 2000, the Custodian carned fees of WSD 125,108, of which USD 37,950 is still
autstardicg a5 of December 31, 2020

TRUSTEE FEES AND ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Trustee i entitled to receve out of the assets of the Furd 3 combined fee at the rate of 0.015% per anmum of the Het
Aszet Valus accrued o, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and pawable guartorly bn armears, subject to a minimum
annual fee of USD 15,000, Durirg the year erded December 31, 2020, the Trustes earmed fees of USD 15,712, of which USD
11,955 s saill autsta nding a5 of December 31, 2020,

AGENT COMPANYS FEES

The Agent Comparry i entithed 1o receive owt of the adtend of the Fund & fee at the rate of 0U03% per snnum of the Nee
Aszet Walue accrued an, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable guarterly in arrears. During the year ended
Daecember 31, J020, the Agert earred feed of USD 20,705, of which USD 8664 i @ill sutstanding as of December 31, 2020,
DESTRIBLUTICR'S FEES

The Distributar is entitled to receie out of the assets of the Fund 2 for at the rate of 0.65% per annum of the Met Asset
Value accrued om, and caloulated as an. each Valuation Day and payable guamerly im arrears, During the year ended

Decembeer 34, 2020, the Distributors earned fees of USD 448,806, of which USD LAT,724 is stil outstanding as of December
31, 2020.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The coSTS AnG SXPERSES i CONMECTION Wwith the establiskment of the Fund and the offering of the Urits, together with the
establiskmert of the Trust, including the costs and expenses of preparing and printing any prospectus or explanatory
brachires \rd, A L =R ] Tt approeimately UISD 1400000, Such costs and expiedes will bi amamises
within the first foee (5] financial years of the Fund unless the Trustee decides that some other method shall be applied. The
Adenicistrator receiees USD 1,500 per annum for FATCA / CRS compliaroe senices

Tha: Underdying Fund is ertithed to recehse out of the st of the Underhving Fung, a fee atthe rate of 0.65% per anrum of
the Mot Asset Value of the Underbying Fund,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

That Furst's acthitins eapose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk, intenest rate risk, and eurrency
risk}, credit risk ard lisuisity rigk.

Market Risk
Al Ipvestmaets presoet a rsk of less of capital, The Investment Marager moderates this dsk through a careful selection of
secwrities and other financial instruments.

The Fund's irvestment maragemert protess is dewcribed in Mote 1. The primary determirant of the Fund's ability to meet
TS abjectie of mid 1o b vere capinal approciation while earning ircome 5 Seperdert on The Hlfﬂl"ﬂ‘lll'ﬂ!‘ of the
investment im the Uncertying Fund.,

The values of the Furd's imvestments are affected by a rumiber of factors, inclucing but rot limited to, charges in the wider
econamy, Timarcial ang currency markets, fareige cunfency exchanpe rates and inmered] rate mavements. The Fung erters
into foraard cortracts which to warying degrees represent 3 market risk in oxcess of the amount reflected on the Fund's
Statemery of Assers and Liabiliies. The sotional amount of the forward cortract represerts the ement of the Fund's
pamicipation in these firancial instruments, Market nsks associated with such forward cortracts arkse due to the possible
mayements in foreige curmency exchange rates urderdying these irstruments.

Other market and credit rigks include the passibility that there may be an illiouid mardket far the cortracts, that the change
in the value of the contract may rat dieectly correlate with charges in the value of the urderlying curmencies or that the
LOuRtErparty th & forward corteact defsults on i obligation % pedfarm under the terme af the cantiset. The Fund's
axposung 1o kss dup to counterparty non-peformance on open futu s, forwarnds, swap and options contracts & limitod 1o
the unrealized appreciation inherent in such firancial irstrumerts which are recognized in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities

Credit Rivk

Copdit sk represents the patential loss that the Furd would iecur  the courterpartias, falled te perform pursuant to the
terd of their abigations 1o the Fund, Far exchange-traded cortracts, the exchange Jcts 38 the courerpanmy to specific
transactions ard, tharefore, bears the rsk of delvery to ard from counterparties of specific posiions, The Fund's
management daes not cansider that credit risk related ta open derivative contracts will hawve material acverse effect an the
firarcial condition of the Fune

Although the Manager morgors the Custodian and Believes it m be ar appropriate custadian, thare & ra guarantes that
this or ary custocian that the Fund may use from time to time, will not become insabvert, which could lead to losses for
thit Fune,

While otk the U5, Bankruptey Code and the Securitied Investor Protection Act of 1970 ek 10 protec CLstamer pro pemny
in the ewert of a failure, insobwency or liguidation of an institution, there is no certainty that, in the event of a failure of an
instiuTian that has custody of Fund assens, the Fund would rol eur loodsd Sue 1O its J94ets Being urdvailible far 3 poricd
of time, ultimately bess than full recoverny of its assets, or both. Because all of the Fund’s cash ks in custocy with a single
institutian, such losses could be significant ard could materially impair the abdity of the Fund to achieve its irvestmert
ohjective. The Fung is subject to credit risk to the extent that this institution may be unable to fulfill its abligations to repay
Amourts awed.

quidity ik

Investars shauld be awane that the value of Units might fall as wall as rise, Imeestenent in the Fund involees a degree of risk;
there can be no #ssurarce that the Furd's investment abjective will be achieved.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

FINANCLAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continued)
Liguidiny Risk [continuwed)]

The Fund is exposnd to cally repurchase of s Usis but management babewes that the Furd kas sufficiont resources to
mect the present and fo bk recds af its busi operations and, if recessany, the Bguidity to furd repurchases and
achieve 3 market potition appropriately reflecticg o smaller capial base. This position B manitared continually by
managemant to ensune that the Fund has the ability to meet 25 obligatiors,

The Trusten, afier consultation with the Marager, may suspord the issuance ard repurchase of units and payments in
respiect of such trantactions in ary drcumstances where the calculathar of the Underlyirg Fund's Met Aot Value per unit
s suspencded. The Trustee will inform unithaloers af such a suspersion as soor as practicable after & ks imposec or lifted.
Subscription applicatiors and repurchase potices carnot Be withdrawn durnrg such suspension ard will be processed for
the rext Dealing date. All Unithedders of the Fund will B2 promptly notified |n weiting of ary such suspension and will be
promiptly notifed upan termiration of such swspension.

Currenoy Risk

The Usit peice of USD Class Usits is derenmaned in USD, and the Unit price of IPY Hedged Class Units is detemined in
laparese Yen while the Furd is deramirated in ULS. callars. The Fund, however, may imeest a portion, or 21 of, its assets in
olker CLIERCHS, oF in INSrLMents denomirated in non-Lapanese Yen of non-US Dallar cumencies, the prces of which will
be cetermined with referenoe to such non-Japarese Yen of ron US Dodlr currencios. The value of the Fund's assets will
fluctuate with Japanese Yen exchanpe rates 3¢ well as the price changes of its irvesments in the varous lecal madoets and
currercies.

The Furd also may utilice options and foreard contracts to hedge agaiest cumrency fluctuations, but there cam be ro
assurarce That such hedging Transactiors will be efective, ard such techaigues ertad costs ard aceitional risks,

The investment marager monitors the Furd's cumency exposure on a daily basis.

Cther Risk

During the wear, the COVID-19 outbeeak was declinee a pardemic by the Workd Healkk Drganization, The situation s
dyramic with various cities and countries arourd the workl respording in different ways to address the outbreak. The
rapicd dewelopment and flulkdity of this sitvation precludes any prociction as its ulimate impact, whick may have a
COPTLeT ACWErEE EMPECT On Btanamic Jnd market corditiors ard trigger a pericd of gobal scaramic dowdown.

The Trudtee ard |rveitmert Marager sre monitonrp develbpmentt nelsting to COVID-19 and are coordinating their
aperational resporse based an existing business continuity plars and on guidance from ghbal health organizatiors,
relevant gavernmerts, and general panclemic response best practices.

BORROWINGS

The Marages ardfor ts delegates may borraw monrkes for the account of the Fund provided that it will rat borrew money
. 8% a resule of sueh barrowing, the agaregate amourt of sutstanding barrawirgs effected on behal of the Fund wauld,
immediately followirg such borrowing. exceed 10% of the value of its rot assets, save that this Bmi may be axceeded
temporarily far a peried rot exceeding 12 marths in special situatians incdluging, without Emitation, a menger of the Fund
with another series trust, irvestmert fund or other type of collective investment schome.

Thare wang i borgwings dureg the year erded Docember 31, 20200
COMMITMENTS AND COMTINGENCIES

In the rormal course of busieess, the Trustee on bekalf of the Fund may enter into cortracts that contain a variety of
representations ard warrarties ard whick provide gereral indemnifications. The general irdemnifications apply not anly
o tRe AXTerT fuch MEpRESERTATiong and waMAnrted are urtrue BUE JRo may coser thind pamies such ad the Fund's
Admiristrator, Aucitor or investment Manager for claims related o the services perfarmed for the Fued, The Trusier's
PNV CXPOSLIE LAGER ARy SUCk JITIRReMERTS B uaknown, 35 expasure arly arkes 1o the extent future daims tha
hawe not yet occunned are made agairst the Trustee. However, based om expenience, the Truster capects the risk of boss to
be remate.

78/186



15,

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Maragemont pn-‘formﬁa SUbSBGUANT EverTs view up o Jure 18, 2020 wkick is the dage the finarcial Statosnents were
available to be sued.

Effective January 1, 2021 through June 18, 2021, there were subscriptions of USDr 4,064, 712 and there were redemptions
aof IS0 11,002 947 in respect of IPY Hedged Cliss Units. Thene were destributiars of nil in respect of IPY Heaged Clads Liris.

EMeetive January 1, 2021 vhrough June 18, 2021, there were subseriptions of USD 28,232,373 and there wene redemptions
of USD 34,236,082 in respoct of USD Class Units, There wern cistributions of ril in respect of USD Class Units
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2019 12 31

TRP
2019 12 31
42,725,169 48,192,908 5,249,653
2,673,486 291,223
2,243 244
54,987 5,990
50,923,624 5,547,110
1,663,420 181,196
140,000 15,250
81,726 8,902
59,173 6,446
58,318 6,353
11,891 1,295
3,772 411
3,743 408
36,709 3,999
46,227 5,036
2,104,979 229,295
48,818,645 5,317,815
41,338,739 4,503,029
7,479,906 814,786
48,818,645 5,317,815
1,390,992,944
125,027 11,126
36,019,078
3,102,300 11.61 1,265

108.93
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2,124

19,499

2,124

388,742
167,458
119,052
76,071
17,942
14,998
9,997
610
251,153

42,346
18,241
12,968
8,286
1,954
1,634
1,089
66
27,358

1,046,023

113,943

(1,026,524)

(111,819)

3,540,169
252,700

385,631
27,527

3,792,869

413,157

13,478,170
(497,439)

1,468,177
(54,186)

12,980,731

1,413,991

16,773,600

1,827,148

15,747,076

1,715,329
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(1,026,524) (111,819)

3,792,869 413,157
12,980,731 1,413,991
15,747,076 1,715,329

1,045,960 113,936
16,835,194 1,833,858
(7,715,443) (840,443)
(43,497,164) (4,738,146)
(33,331,453) (3,630,795)
(17,584,377) (1,915,466)
66,403,022 7,233,281
48,818,645 5,317,815
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TRP
2019 12 31
TRP
2018 14
2012 10 15
2009 a CIMA
2018 28
CIBC
UFJ PB
FASB ASC
946

GAAP
GAAP
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NAV

GAAP
GAAP

ASU  2015-07

2019 12 31

2019 12 31

2,243 2,243
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2,243 2,243
2019 12 31

36,709 36,709

36,709 36,709
FASB ASC 740

50
15 80,819 10 13,220
46
8,450,948 27 255,024
SICAV
SICAV us
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2018 12 31 15,851,083 50,551,939 66,403,022
1,045,960 16,835,194 17,881,154
(7,715,443)  (43,497,164)  (51,212,607)
3,617,967 12,129,109 15,747,076
2019 12 31 12,799,567 36,019,078 48,818,645
2018 12 31 193,351 5,544,008 5,737,359
10,956 1,577,193 1,588,149
(79,280) (4,018,901) (4,098,181)
2019 12 31 125,027 3,102,300 3,227,327
2019 12 31 102.37 11.61
10.00
10,000
2018 18 2018 27
10
10
0.001 100 0.01
0.001 10,000
2019 12 31
2019 12 31 1,663,420
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2019
ASC 815-10-50
a b
c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA
2019 12 31 MNA
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MNA
@
Citi PB 2,243 (2,243)
2,243 (2,243)
2019 12 31 MNA
MNA
@
Citi PB 36,709 (2,243) 34,466
36,709 (2,243) 34,466
@
2019 12 31
2,243 36,709
2019 12 31
268,244 (497,439)
0.28
0.03 2.5 0.25 2.5
0.24 0.22
2019 12 31 167,458 2019 12 31 11,891
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0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
2019 12 31 119,052 2019
12 31 59,173
0.015
15,000 2019 12 31
14,998 2019 12 31 3,743
0.03
2019 12 31 17,942 2019 12
31 3,772
10
0.65
2019 12 31 388,742 2019 12 31
81,726
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13
10
12
14
15
2020 17
2020 2020 17 2,477,272
5,342,597
2020 2020 17 22,756,542
19,827,387
COVID-19
2020 11 2019 COVID-19
() ( )COVID-19
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

December 31, 2019

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

LETH

bramtrn gre g in Lirdierly g Fused ot Fair vy (eost of UISDF A3, 725, £69) [F]a] 48,197,508
Caiky LETadeE
brw ol zed appreciation on foreend foregn ourrenoy exchange contracks 234
Praped s 54 557
Total msets 50,9236
Lishligler:

Papablefor Units redeem ed LGER 3G
A OIEAEESLion EpenGe 140,000
Airaid diptrben o Dkl E: e
Areed austoden and sb-sdmnisrator's fee 173
Acoruad professonl fees Lo RLL]
Apiriaad finge e e 11,838
acrruad agent com pany’s feas 3783
e trugtion i 3,743
Lrewal hird deprciation on forw ard lorign aarrency sachange cordrecs 35,709
Oty anperices (el
Tt bkl ties 104873
Met Aspety Attributable ta Unithaldan uso 818,665
Brabyis of Net 2 soti

Egd i capetal L] AL 33073
Tokml distributable sarnings TATS 508
et Apppte At ributable to Unithaldary usD ABEIRAS
Met Anset Valus par Uniy

{7 Hedged Ol IPY 1,590,992, 9448 = 175,027 Lnatd cutstardng) il L1268
P Clacss UED 36,013,078 + 3, 102, 300 Linits oot s anding) LD 1161

The accompaming notes are an integral part of these Snandal staternents.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Imamtmant Incema:
brneres L&D 19,453
Total Irvestment Income 18,455
Expanaas;
Destrib ubor's foes 308,742
Ilanagement fess LT 45N
Chisrean and b -adm niaraor's fess 118087
Profrrea sl lees TEO7TE
Agert com pany s e LTS
Trustes fees 155
Teardler agent foes azar
B agitrahon faw 610
b Eparee 251153
Totml Erpanoes LO&6OTE
at Invertmoent Lovies 1056 524)
Rasboed and Wereslized GuingTlanier):
Fnalipied gaines adted )
Ittt s falin of Linderbying Fund 1540, 165
Fomeign ourmency transactiors and forw ardfore gmiconrency eschange contracts 252 100
Mt reakied geng A FOLBES
Tharge bnunreshzed appreceticnderecaton)
Irredneniend € in Liedierd yin g Fund 3,478,170
Faruign curmancy Ir i el e g g Eurrdney st hange contietd 37 AT
Mt clrange i unnead nid Bppreciaton 13,980, T31
Fiog reabred and unredsed geins TREET]
et incremis in et B1iet redulking from eperationn USD 15,747 076

The accompaming notes are an integral part of these Snandal staternents.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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Incraans [Daorearn]in Mt Sz ek from:

Dparation:

it i et vl b Bl

Mot realaed geing

et chrge in ureesliced apprecimeon

T P i A AR S vl g RS DfEratio ng

Capits| Transsctioni:

Ut pnd
Y Hedged Cass (10,956 Unas)
SO e [ 1,577,193 Uit}

Uity redanmed
WP Hadgaed Class [ 79, 280 Und )
LED Ok (4,018,501 Unk 1]
et decrease o net sstets revdbing from capitaltransagtions

Total Decrears in bat daete

Het Sasetic
Bupnnmg ol pear
Ered of yopr

D [%036.524)
3 Ta2L.B6Y
12,980,731

L5 747,078

105,960
15,535,194

[, 75 843)
[43,457, Led)

(33,331, 253
— (758AITT)

65, 403,022
(LN TN

The accompaming notes are an integral part of these Snandal staternents.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

TRP LG Core Growth Bquity Rund (tha “Fund™) is 8 series trust of e MNikko AM Olfshere Funds, an cpen-ended unit irust
established by a supplemental trust deed dated May 14, T8 [the “Supplemnental Trust Deed”), under the Laws of the
Cayrnean Islands, Nikka A% Offshars Fund s was sstablishad by & master trust deed dated Derober 15, 2002 {the “Master
Trust Deed™), under the laws of the Cayman Idands and is liomnsed with the Cayman Blands Monetary Authoring porsuant
ta section 4{110a) of the Muatizal Funds Law (2009 Revision], The Fund commanced aperstions on June I8 2018,

Tha Fund's sesets are managed on a day to dey basis by Nikko AM Global Caryman Lirited [the “Manages"], The Manager
delegates investmant management dutes to Nikks Aster Management Co., Ltd, {the "mmstrent Managert), The
Irvestment Manager may delegate responsbility for the management of the investment and re-meestrment of ceriain parts
of the Fund's imestreant portfolio 1o cther investment managers, The aderinisration of the Fund is delagated 1o Brown
Brothers Harriman & Co. (the “Custodian” and *Sub-Admrinistrator’], abmited partership organized under the baws of the
State of Mew York,

Tha investrnent ob jctive of the Fund is 1o achieve growth in the value of units over the long terrn By Imesting intoa fund,
witich Irvests mainly in a diversifled portfolie of stocks of lange and medium daed “blus chip® companies in the United
Guates,

Lingder the terrrs of the Supplementsl Trust Deed and the Master Trst Dead, CIBC Bank and Trust Company [Cayman
Lirmited {the “Trustes” and the “Adminfsrator” ] is named a5 Trustes of the Fund,

The Manager sppointed Mitswbishi LEI Morgan Stanley PB Secufities Coy, Lid to- act as Agent Cormpany [the “Agent
Company™) and 1o st &s Clarnibuter [the “Distdbuter™) of Unitain lapan,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Fund i3 an invegtrment Company thae Tollows the scommting and reporting guidance in FASE Accounting Standards
Codification S48,

U of Ertim ot

Theaccompamying fnanda statemants hinee bean prepared inaccordance with acocunting ::In'r'tipllr:-g:rﬂ‘ﬂp accepiad in
the Uritad Stanes of America UL5 GANPY) The praparation of finanoal staternsnts in aocondancs with LS. GAAP reguires
the Fund's mansgement to make estimates and assumptions that alfect the reported amounts of assets and lisbilities and
disclonres of contingent assets and lisbites at the date of the financid statements and the reported amounts of
revendss and exparses furing the reporting pericd. Actusl remdts, induding the ultimates smount resized upon the sl of
[ v impestrnen s, coubd differ from thoss estirnates o such differences may be sgnilicant.

Bomis of Aecounting

Seaurity and conbractusl transactions are recorded on @ tradefcontract-dete basis. nbarest income is recorded on an
affsctive yiald basis, net of sy applicable withhalding e, Interest axpense and othaer expanges ora recorded on an accresl
basis Reslizad gains and |oses from seourity transactions are computed on the basis of the average cost of the saarities
wld o covered, hanges in the wduation of imestments e recorded in the Staterrent of Operations 8 wealiped
appredation o depredation,

Valuation of irestments

Iresstrnants in other investment companies ("hedge funds®™) ore vilued on the basis of the Net Asset Vaue [“NAV") per
share as reported by the adminfstratons of those entitfes at the t date bosed upon policies and procedures
adopted by the Furd. In coses where the Fund could in the normsl course of business radesm its undardying immestment,
such imvestments are generally valued at the net aset valuation s provided by the adminisrabors of those entifes.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

SLMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [continuad)

Valuation of Imvertmaents [coatin ued]

Im o whare the Fund is unable te redesmn its underlying investrent, such invesrnentsin portfolio funds are also valusd
ot the net asser vailuations prowded by e admirisrances of those entifes, provided that the underlying portfolle funds
e calaudaned their net asset valubtions in sccordance with scocunting messurement guidance which is spolicabile b
Ewpestmient cormparies e, imesstments within such underyng investrent companies have been fadr valuad in accordande
with applicable LIS GAAF, unless the Investment hMsnager datermines that such & valustion wodd net be the mas
wproprisce indicator of fair valueg, inwhich case the investmaent would be Tafr walued by the Invessment Manager,

I accordance with the authoritative guidance on far valus messuraments and dsdosures under LS, GAAR, the Fund
discloses the far value of its imeestmants in 8 Werarchy thar pricritizes the inputs 1o waluation techriques used 1o Mmesmure
e fadr walue, The Peerarchy gives the highest pricrity 1o valuations based wpon unadisted quated pricesin active markens
for identical assets or Habdlides (Level 1 measurament) and the lowest priodty to valuations based upon unobservable
Inputs that are sigaificant 1o the valuation (Level 3 measurements), The guidance establishes thres levels of the fair value
heranchy as followss

®  Level 1 - Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identicdl Irnvestrnents that the Fund
haes the ability toacoess af the meamurament date;

#  Level 7 - Imputs ather then quoted prices that are sgrificant and observaiile for the assst or lisbility either
directly or indirectly, including inputsin markoets that o e not considerad to be active;

*  Level 1= lnputs that are sgnificant and uncbservable,

Irpuats are used in applying the vasious val uatdon tachnigues and broadly refer to the asumpions that market participants
use bo makee valuation dedisions, Induding assumptions about risi Inputs may include price information, specic and broad
et data, liguiciny statistics, andd ot Tactors, A fnancial Insmument’s lewe within the Talr value Merardhy s based upon
the lowest bevel of any inpust that [5 sgrilficant o the far value messrement. However, the determination of what
comitfutes “chaarvable® requires significant judgment by the Invesment Manager. The Invesomant Maniger considers
cbservable data to be market data which is readily svaltable, regularly distributed or updated, rellable and verifiable, not
propriecary, and provided by independent sources that are activaly invalved in the rd evant market, The categorization of a
fimancial insbruereent within the hisrarchy 5 based upon the pridng ransparency of the instrument and does not necessarly
oomespond to the mestment Manager’s percaived riskof that insbrument.

Irvestmants whose valses are basad on the quoted markst prices in active rarkets, and therafore classiTed within Lewal 1,
wonld include acthvey traded sguides, cortin LLS, govermment and soverdgn cbligaticns, and certain money marker
seaurities. The Investment Manager would not adjust the quoted price for such instruments; even in sitions where the
Fund held alarge posidon and o sale couldreasonably impact the quoted pice,

Irvesiomiants that rade in marken that are not conpiderad to be active, but are valued based on guoted mardoet prices,
dealer quotations or dternative peicing sourges supported by chservable inputs are dasified within Level 1. These indude
impzsbmentgrads debt securities, short-term [rvestments and forward foreign currency exchange contracts. As Level 2
Evestments Include pogitons that ane not traded in active markets andfor are subject to transfer restricions, waluations
ey bt justed 1o reflect iiquidity and/or non-rransherability, whith are generally based on svailables marketinformation,

Irestnants classiBad within Level 3 have sgnificant unchservable inputs, s they would rade infreguently, Leva 3
instruments would Indude assetbacked securities and collateralized morigage cbligations. As chservable prices are not
wvalable for these securities, the Fund would use valuation tedhnigues to devive the fair valus,

Tha inputs o methodelogy wied Tor valuing secunities ane not nevessarily an indication of the risk assodaned with invessing
n chose securities.

Im ageordance with ASU 2015407, the Fund's imwesement In other invesomant companies has ot Been cotegoriand in the
lasir wiipe rier archy mer in e rall forward of Bnvestment acthaty,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

SLUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [continued)

Valuation of Invertments [contin ued)

The fellcwing tabile preserits the finandal instrurments carred on the Statement of Assets and Liabdites by caption and by
tevel within the valustion Werarchy as of Decemnber 31, 2018, Further classifications of the Enancial instruments ane
presantad in the Portfaio of Imestmants.

Bavets ot Fair Valus Fair Valua 32
Levell Levpl 2 Level 3 Decemberdi, 2019
Porward Foreign Curency
Extharps Conlraeti I‘JSE - [ a] 2,343 (] - LIS 2,243
Total [ = =] EFLE] LeD - WD 2243
Usbimier 3% Fair Vakae Fair Valua 3t
Levell LevtlZ Leveld Deember 31 2009
Farwird Fofegn Curancy
Excharge Contracts ] - L 36,709 [1.1s] - e 35, M
Total [ - 1= 5 709 Lo - LSt 36,78

Foreign Curremoy Translation

Aszets and |labilides had in currendes other than United States Dollar (UED" or the *Functdonal Curency”] are randated
o the Functional Currency &t the rate of axchange preailing at the finendal statement date, [noome and axperibeg arée
trarsiated at the rate of exchange prevaling at the date on which the income or expense is incumed. Realized and
urraalized gains and |osses arising on foreign crrency ransactions are induded in the Staternant of Operations in the
period inwhich they ocour.

The Fund does not isclate that portion of the results of operations readting from changes in foreign exchange rabes on
imyestments from the luctuations arising from dhanges in market prices of searities hed. Such fluctuatihons o e induded
with tha net reall ped and unreaized galn or boss from investments.

Imeovmn e Toes

Under the owrrent bsws of the Cayman lslands, there are no incomes, withholding, capital gains or other toees panyable by
the Fund, in certain jurisdictions other than the Cowman Idands, foreign taxes may be withhad at source on dividends and
interest recalved by the Fund. Cagpital gains derived by the Fund in such judsdictions generally will be exesrot from foreign
Ingome or withholding taees af source, The Fund intend s to conduwct (ks affales such that 0wl nod e subject toincome tax
En amy jurisdiction. As o result, no prosision for incomie tawes has basn made in the financial statemants. Unitholders mary
b tiopad on thar proportonate share of the Fund's tax banis indames based on thair individud circumstancas,

Tha Fund failowrs the suthoritative guidance on sccounting for and disdosure of unoartainty in e poaitions [Financial
Accounting Standards Board [“RASET) - Accounting Standards Codification 740, whidh regunes the Manager o determine
whether a tax position of the Fund is more fikaly than not to be sustaned upon esamination by the applicable taxing
authorty, Including resciution of any related appeals or lifgation prooesses, based on the technical merits of the posidon
For tax positions meeting the more fiikgdy than not threshald, the tax benefit recognized in the financial statements s
reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent gelihcod of being realized upon wiimate settement
with the relevant taming authority. The Manger has determined that there is minima or no effect on the fnancia
smaterments belng under this authoritathee guldance.

Forwird Forelgn Currenay Enchange Controcts

The Furd may anter inoo forward lforsign aurrency sichange conradts 1o hadge agairgt forsign dumengy sschang @ rate
rigks on all or a porton of non-USD dencminated investments or for efficent portfdlo management purposes. When
enterng mto & forward foraign curmancy exchange contract, the Fund Bgress 1o recsive o deliver @ Bued quantdoy of
foreign curmency for an agreedwpon price on an agreed future date, These contracts are valued daily, and the Fund's net
equity therein, representing unrealipsd appreciationf{deprediation on the contracts a5 meawred by the difference
bartwsen che forward foreign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry Into the contracts and the fonward rates ot the
reporting date, is included in the Statement of Assets and Lisbllides. Amalized and unrealized gaing and losses are Induded
b the Statement of Operations.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

SLUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [<ontinued)

Forward Forign Currenéy Exchan g Controcts [continwed]

Thase imtrumnants imeclve marker fsk, credit sk, o both kinds of risks, in excess of the amount reccgrieed in the
Seaternant of Assets and Uabilides. Aisks arfse from the possible inability of counterparties to mest the teems of ther
conracs and from movernent in aurrency and ssourities values and interest rates In addition to the Jass level hedging,
e Fund had realized gain of LGB0 13,730 on 15 forward foregn ourrency exchange contracts during the year with an
verage noticna of LBD B0, 519 and an fver age term tarmaturity of 10 daye, The Fund hid net resiized gain of USD 255,024
on 46 lonward Toreign curency exchange contracts held af tha 177 Hedged Oass level during the year with an averags
nationd of LISD 3,450,948 and an sverage term to matusity of 27 days.

Cemh and Foreign Currency
Carsh anad fior eign currency comprises all curangy haeld with Brown Brothers Harmiman B Co,, and cwernight and other shor
term placemants with other Ananclal instnedons,

INVESTMENT IN THE UNDERLYING FUND

The Fund shall primarity imsest In shares of LG Bwe Chip Eguity Fund [the “Undaerying Fund®), a sub-fund of 7, Bowe Price
Furds SICAY, o socided dirvestissernsnt b capital varfable (“SICAN™) astabiished under the lovws of Lusernibourg, The SICAY
qualifies a5 an Undertaldng for Collective imsestment in Transferable Securitles ("UCOTS") under Part 1 of the Lusembourg
lowy of Deceamber 17, 2010 on undertaidngs for colfective imvestment {the "2000 Low™) and is registered on the official bist of
collec tve invesment undertaldngs malntained by the Commission de Sunvelllanos du Sectewr Rnander |“C55F7),

The chjecthn of the Underdying Fund is 1o Increase the vafue of its shares, over the lorg term through growth i the value
of itz investmentts, by imvesting malnly in a diversified portiolio of stodos of large and medium szed “blue chip® companles
b ch Liniced Soates,

speifically, the Linderying Fund imvests ot leass two-thirds of toral assers in squity and equityrelatsd secuniies of
companies that are efther incorporated in the United States of America of comduct most of thelr buginess there, that hawve
& markar capitalisation equal 1o of greater than the companies in the Rusedl Mid-cap index or SBP Mid-cap 400 Index, and
that have a leading market position, seasoned management and srong financlal fundamentals, Types of securites may
nclude cormnrman stocks, prefenred stocks, warrants, Armesican Deponitory Recsipts (“ADRS), European Depository Receipts
{“EDRs") and Globad Depositony Recepts “G0Rs").

The Underlying Fund does not invest more than ene-third of lts asse s in debt and rmoney maroet securldes.
The Undarlying Fund may wee derivatives for hedging and afficient portfaio management.

Tha Underlying Fund's fnandal statermsents are prepaned under generally acospted accounting prindipies in Lueemboung
and the acoounting polides of the Underying Funds are substantially consistent with thase of the Fund, Units of the
Underfying Fund may be redeermed cn sach Business Day,

URITS

The rey assets of the Fund are diviaed into JPY Hadged Qs Unfts and LISD Oass Linits, The Units are dencrrinated in
lepacreds Yoo and United States Doller, IPY Jass Units snd USD Oass Units are svalable to an oligible imwestor whea is any
Person, conporation o entty wivch i not ] & “US bwestors™ (o defined below]; (7] & person o eatity resident or
dermidled in the Cayrman ldands [exduding any cbject of a dhartable trust of powsr o &0 eaempted o ron-resident
Caryrnans [olanads cornpany; (i) unable to subscriba for or held Unis witheut Welating applicable laws; and (i) & custedian,
normines, or rustes for any parson, corparat on o entity described in [ tofil] sbove, o mach cther parsons, conpor ations
o engties as deterrinad from Brme to tme by the Manager, with the approval of the Trustes,

Tha Marager ray detenmine to s one or mone dasess of Units of the Fund witheu t price notice 1o o writien consent of
the Uinitholdars,

Al &f the net assets attributable 0o P Hedged Class Linits and USD Oass Urits are hedd by one Unitholder,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

UNITS |centivu ad)

Y Hedged T S0 Cham Totsl Fund
Balance st Decambar 31, 2018 EDr 1SBTifEd  USD S0.551,930% S0 EE 403,007
Subpnphar durrg e year 1,045,960 16,835, 154 17.8aL 154
Hedemptions duringthe year (7.T15.443) [CEECEATTT [$L. 202607}
et nCrease i nat ausets resulting from operations AELT ST l!,E:IIIE 15,747,076
et Asats et Decombor 31 2019 ASD 1RTHASET MO M00R0TE S0 48000645
B baer ol Ly i | ppos 08 Dizaen e 31, JOLE 593,358 5,544, D 5 TITI5E
Lnitg pued dunng the year PR LT 193 LEER1ee
Urits redesmed during the e [ 78, 8 LI.UES}I] (4,090, 181
Humber of Units in e ot Decembber 31 30189 FFENFI 10 00 ENFFERF
et Mgt Vihuw per Linit ot Dacembaee 51, 2010 L] 10y ush 1068
Fubscriptions for Units

LEE CDass Linits wad subscribed for by Eligible Irvestors during the Initial Offer Period &t the inftidl purchase price of LSD
10000 et Liew, JPY Herdged Clavss Uics was subscribed for by Eligible Investors curing the initial Offer Pericd a1 the irial
purchase price of JFY 10,000 per Unit, The initfal Offer Parfod commencad on une 18, 2008 and ended on June 27, 2018 In
addition to the abscription price, the moplicant shall pay & sdes charge cofeulabed Bt up to 39 lexduding ary ta
applicable) of the purchase price, oo the Distibucor,

Curing the Inidial Offier Pericd, the menimum subscription for LED Chass Lirits per subseriber woas 10 Urdts or more, and in
rrultipies of 1 Uit therealter, During the itid Offer Perfod, the minimuny initfal subsaription for IPY Hedged Olass Units
par subgoriber was 1 Unit or mone, and in multiples of 1 Linits thareafter,

O ard after cha Initdl Closing Doy, the mvnimum subscription for USD Class Linits. per Uinichalder [5 either 10 Units or
mere, and in rmdtipbes of 0001 Urits thareafter or IUSD 100, and in multiples of LSO 001 thersafter, On and after the
Iritiel Jesing Dy, the minimum sdbseription for JPY Hedged Class Urdts per Ursthelder is either 1 Unit or more, and in
ovniltiples of OO Uinits ther safter or 1PV 10,000 and in multiphes of JPY 1 thereafter,

The Mansger rmay waive o change the minimem nital and additional subscription amounts st forth above in its wole
dincreion from tme o e,

Linit Redemptions

The Furd recogrizes redemptions n accordance with the authoritaltive guidance on distinguishing liabiEties Borm aquity.
Radarnptions, wissthar expraised &3 Linited States Doller, lapaness Yen or Lnity, are recognized &s lisbeities when asch of
the lapaness Yen and United States Dollar Undt amounts requested in the redemiption notice becomes fived, which
garmcaly may ootur sither 1 the time of the recsipt of the actios, o o the et day of & fiscal yesr, dapeanding on the
nature of the reguest. As a result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but based upon year end net assets are
reflacted & redernplions payable at Decanber 31, 2014, There were UBD 1,663,420 and IPY nil of redernptions payable as
ot Decernbar 31, 2019 indud ad as Payaltla for Units redesrmed in the Statermant of Assats and Lisbllites

Repurchese of Units
Umits iy bes respur chivsed at the cption of Linitholdiers con sadh Répar dhases Dy,

Uinithabders wishing to have Units repunchased must send 8 completed Repurchase Notice o the Digributor 30 & tabe
racaved by the Distributer re later than 3:00 purm. (Tokye trme) on the relevent Repurchass Dy, The Distibutor will send
the completed Repurthase Notices to the Sub-Adminigrator by no [ster than 6:00 pom. {Tokyo tims) on the relevant
Reparchine Doy or by such other tme as the Sub-Admirisrator may in any par fouar case determine,

I the relevant Repurchase Notios is net recsived by the Sub-Adminterator by the relevant tims, the Repurchase Motics will
bz held over until the neat Repurchadse Doy and Unfts will then be redeemed ot the relevant repurdhase price applicable on
that Repurchase Day, in the avent sither the day slter the relavant Dealing Day of tha day fafing two dove alter the
rélevant Dealing Doy is & day on which banks o stock ewchanges in Japan are not open for normal business, oy
Repurchase Motice recsivad on such Deding Doy, shall not be sccepted snd instesd, will be sccepted on the next Dealing
(0]

& Repurchase Notice, once given, isinmevocable.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

UMITS [cent imuad])

Compudsary Redemption

in the vant that tha Trustes or the Manager shall datarmine that any Urits of sny class of & Fund are baing hald by or for
the banefit of 8 person who fsnot an Bigbie Investor for sudh Fund o that such bolding would couse the Trust o the Rund
b bt required to register, be subjact b b or viclate the lows of any jurisdiciion, or if the Trustes or the Manager has
redion to doubt the lagitimacy of the sourca of mories used to fund the subseription o purchass of such Units, o for
whatever reason {which may not be disdosed by the Trustes or the Manager to Unitholders) that the Trustes or the
Mangger conaiders appropriate &t its sbheclute disretion having regerd to the inter=its of the Unithalders of the refavar
Oams or the Unitholders of the Fund a5 a whole, then the Manager, after consuftation with the Trustes, may direct the
heider therecf to sell {subjact to the provisions detaibed below in the section haaded "Transfer of Units") such Uniis
within 10 days and provide to the Trustes and the Manager evidence of such sale, falling which the Manager may redeemn
swich Units.

Termination of the Fund
Upon termination, the Manager will reallze oll te assets of the Fund, and after paying cu't or retaining adequate provison
for &l lisbilities proparly payable snd retaining provision e tha comes af tha tarmingtion, the Trestee shal dstribute the
procseds of that realization to the Unitho ders proporti onately to thelr respactive interests in the Fund as of the date of
termination of the Fund.

Distributions to Lieitholders

The Manager may, from dme to time, in its sole dscretion, dedare dstributdons from May 20490 Distribution will be
dedared annualy on each Cistribution Record Onbe and caloulated on each Ex-Cistribution Date. Distribution Period is a
period commendng from the calendar diry following the preceding Oistribution Record Date and ending on and Induding
tine Distribution Record Date, The dstributions will be paid on the relevant Distribution Payment Date, prowided that such
amount [ ary] dedared with respect o the relevant Class of Unis in respect of the applicable Distribution Pericd shall
only be paid cut of the Fund's net income, realized anvd unrealized capital gains and any distributable funds of the Fund
attributable to such Jass of Units as determinad by the Manager,

The decaration of digributions to Unitholders reduces the Jass Level Met Assst Valus per Uit without any comesponding
thange in the rumber of Qass Lessl Units per Unithalder, This results in o Unithalder's everall indestrnent in the Fund
being reduced, in addicion, avy dsributions during a period which are in ex0e5s of the Fund’s nat Increase In net Bssets
resulting from operations resdlts in aporton of the distribytion being renirm of capital

The amount of distributions, iF amy, will be detenmined by the Manager in its sole disoretion, and no representation or
guarantes is mads that a diseribution wil be made in respect of asdh or any Distribution Perled,

Capitadization

Thar Mer Asset Viabue per Unit 5 caloudated for each Dealing Dary [sach Valuation Day, of suth other day or days as the
Neanager ridny frem tirne b tirme deterrrine: in raspect of tha Fund), by dividing the difference in wahie betwesn the Fund's
asents and |[abilites (nduding accrusd fees and experses of the Fund) by the number of Unics outstanding.

The Trust Daed fipudanes that the mumber of Linits 1o be issusd in the Fund shall be wrlirmited a5 the Manager shall
detanrine and shall bewithout par valus,

DERFVATIVE AINANCLAL IMSTRUMENTS

Aooounting Standard Codi fication (A5 81 5-10-50 reguines disd owres sbout darvative instruments and hadging activties
Iereguires thar the Furnd disclose: o] ow and why Bn entity uses derivative instrum ents, b) how derivative imimumants snd
related hadged iterns are accounted for and ) how derivative instruments and related headged items affect an antity's
finencial position, insndal parformancs and cadh flows,

The Fund tamacts forward derfvative instruments primarily for hedging purposes with each instrument's primany risk
wxposre being foreign suchange rge The forward foreign cunency exchang e contractshel d by the Fund do not qualify &
hedges for acoounting purposes under the requirements of ASC BLS The far value of these derhvative Ingtruments is
included in the Statement of Assets and Uabilides with changes in fair value reflacted o realized gaingfiloses) o net
chargein unrealized appreciattonfdepreciation) on derivatives within the Stavsment of Operations [Mote 1,

The Fumd may enter into an international Swaps and Derivative Association, Inc. Master Agreement (“5E0A Master

Bgresment”) with its counterparties in order to mitigate counterparty rse The S0A Mage Agresment is typicaly
negotiaied by the Fund and its counterparties, containing the bi-lateral terms and conditions for all subsequent derbrative
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

DERFVATIVE FINANCLAL INSTRUMENTS | sontinued)

traractions, The S04 Master Agraernent albows for the netting of all armounts cwed 1o or due from Countapary inte a
srgle net payrnant il & credit event o defaulit should ooour,

Tha Furd has slacted e not offser fair value receivables snd payables for derivative contraces on the face of the Statement
of Awsats and Lishilities,

At Dacarmber 31, 2019 the Fund had sntered into the following derivative assets by counterparty net of amounts avalable
for off st undler & Marster Metting Agrearrsant ("MMNA") and net of ary collaserad recaived by the Fund:

Derbestive Basets  Dervath Mereath Caih Mot S snire o
Countorparty Sabjot to s MNA  Awailsbis for Offret Coll | Encahoad ol | Eocabveed Darhvative favets”
GeiFl LED 334350 13, M43 LD —LED - D -
Total usD wsD uUsD - UsD - usn .

At December 31, 2019 the Fund had antered into the following derivative llabilides by counterparty net of amounts
mviiable for offset under & MINA and et of ary oollatersl pledged by the Fund:

Darkative Doerhvatives Honcah Caih Mat fimount of
Counterparty Linbilimies Semilable hor Offset Collvtersl Pledged Collvteral Fladged Deriative
Subject to s MAA Liakilities"
e Fe [4]u] 36, MaLED £2, M43 LISD =0 = LiE0n 34,866
Total D s [BEIED ~usD D saees

b b etk ety th i Fel Ao rbome i o prysible Iroe e CoUSSIREArTY i T et of deflt

At Decernbar 31, 2009 the Fund Rad antered it the follovdng dervatives:

Agrut D arvathons u Darhvativer

(Dbt S ement Tiatam e

Mt Arceuntad For ar of B faks anel of Buzets and

fins-tram wnkn Liabilitias Losatian Falkr Valum Ligblile: Location Fair alus

Farwand hareign camncy  Unnhiliped sopnis slasn Lreraalind diefrutistion

wxchange conbracty on foreand fonsign on Fprward foragn

{Cirnency Fisi] ouETEnGy anchange uso 2,243 cwrency suchanges (1.2r] 36,7
I £O0F L]

Ther effect of denvaire instruments on the Statement of Operations for the year ende d December 31, 3019:

Dierbpkbogr Bt Lecation of Enalizad Changm in Urrg alined
Acoourted G or Lo Galm or {Loa1) B precistion or
ler mi Hedging o e rtvatives an Derhvatived {Depresintian) an
Inztrum snts Blarkeathone

et ramtiz wd ks on Frwiaed fonpgn
Forward Famsign comency  cumancy snchenge conlracty
enchange (oniracti charspe o urrsl ped apprecation on foreerd
{Cirreney Rag) foreign cwrancy eechange contracts LEL [ TE M ABD (&7, 4300
MANAGEMENT FEES

The Manager is entitied to receive out of the awets of the Fund a management fee of a totad of up to AL28% per annum
{CLO35 par anwam in respect of tha fee for the Manager and 0L25% per anrm for the portion of the Net Asset Valus up to
LD 250 million, 0.248% per annum for the porBion of the Net Asset Vales over USD 250 million wup to LED 300 million and
22% par snrum for the portion of the Net At Valus over LED 500 miEon in respect of fes for the Imvessmant
Manager] of the het Asset Walue acorued on, and calolated as at, sach Valustion Day and payabée monthly in amears. In
addition, the Manager is also anfdad to ba reimbursad cut of tha sesets of tha Fund for sny apansetincurad byt in tha
proper pericomance of its powers and duties as permithed under the Master Trust Deed.,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

MAN B GEMENT FEES [comtinuad)

Curing the year ended Decernber 31, 2049, the Manager samed fess of LED 167458, of which LGD 11,891 is sl
cutstanding as of Decernber 31, 2014,

The Manager will pay the fees of the Impestment Manager cutof lts fees, The Irvestrent Manager will be responsible for
paying the fees of any of its dalegates or ather partie sppanted by the Impestrent Manager to perform its functions in
respect of the Fund; provided, however, the Investrment Manager miay charge a ransaction Tes on the subscripdons and
redempricens of shares of the Linderying Fund,

CUSTODIAN AMD SUB-ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Fund has & custedy and acctuwnting agreament with Brown Brothers Harimen & Go [the “Custedian”™ and “Sub-
Administrator”) for which the Custodian recewes a fee calculated and paid monthly based on total assets and ransaction
vl

Tha dustodien and Sub-Administrator is entited to receive out of the asssts of the Fund an administration fee [induding
transfer agent fee) on the Net Asset Value aoowed on, and calcufated as at, each Valustion Dy at the foll owing annival
rata:

= 0LOTHup to (and inchsding] LISD 250 millon;

- LSRR L to [and incleding] LISDS00 milion;

- L0 cvrer IS0 00 million.

Such adminfstration fee Is payable monthly In orrears, and subject oo the mirimum armeal fee of USD 60,000, The Sub-
Adriristrater (¢ aleo antitad to racaiva out of the ety of the Fund fees for curency admirfstration and amecution
serwices ot the rate of 0,053 par annum of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Unit Class, subject to the minemom anmual
fer of UBD 50,000, In addition, the Custodian and Sub-Adminisirator s dlso entded to receive custornany safekeseping fees
and rarsaction changes, Al cut-cf:pocket expenses of the Custodian and Scb-Administrator shadl dso be borne by the
Furrd. During the yeer ended Decambar 31, 2045, the Custodian aamed Fees of UED 119,053, of which LED 53,173 fs =il
outstanding as of Decernbaer 31, 2014,

TRUSTEE FEES AND ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Trustes Esentitted to recsive cut of the assets of the Fund a combined fise a2 the rate of 0,01 5% per annum of the Net
Assat Value accrped on, and calodated a5 at, sach Vaustion Doy and payable guarterly in arears, subject to a minimum
el fes of UISD 15,000, During the year anded Decernber 31, 2019, the Trustes earned fees of LSD 12,998, of which LED
3,743 [5 sl outstanding as of December 31, 2015,

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

Tha bgent Comparry [s entided to recelve cut of the assets of the Fund a fee at the rate of 0.03% per annum of the et
Asmet Value acoued on, and calculated as at, exch Vauation Doy and payable quarterdy in arrears. During the year ended
Decernbeer 34, 2009, the Agent samed fees.of USD 17,544, of which USD 3,772 Is still cutstanding as of Decembeer 31, 2029,

CHETRIBUTIONS FEES"

Tha Distributor is entitad to racsive out of the asses of the Fund & fee st the rate of 00655 par amum of the MNet Asset
Vaue acousd on, and calouated o5 af, sach Vauation Dey and payable quarterdy in orrears. During the year ended
Dwcernber 11, 20049, the Distributors earned fees of USD 388 143, of which UED B 726 is st cutstanding m of Decarber
31, 1019,

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The costs and expenses in connection with the establishment of the Fund and the offering of the Units, together with the
establishmiant of the Trwest, including the costs ad expenses of preparing and printing any prospeches o explanatocy
brochures required, are estimated to amount to approdmately USD 140,000, Such costs and expenses will be amortised
within the first five {5) finandal years of the Fund unless the Trustes decides that some other method shall be applied. The
Adrirestrabor recelves LISD 1 500 per annum for FATCA f CRS compliance sendces

The Underlying Fund I3 entitled to recave cut of the assets of the Linderlying Fund, afee a1 the rate of 065% per annum of
the Mot Agsat Wl of the Undarbying Fund.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

FINANCLAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Tha Furd's Bctivities sapose it 1o avarkery of fnancal riss: madkat risk fincluding price risk, inrerest rate risk, and aurrency
sk}, craditrisk and lgudity rige

Felarkes Rizk
AU ipsesrrents pretent & rigk of loss of capinal, The investrnent Manager rmoderates this risk theeugh s careful salection of
securities and cther financial instruments,

Tha Furid’s irvestrisnt maneg svsent process i5 desoribed in Noe 1, The primasy determninant of the Fund’s ability 1o meset
its ohjective of mid to long verm capitd apprecisticn while sarming income is dependent on the perfarmance of the
st in the Undariying Fund,

Tha values of the Fund's impesoments ace allected by 8 rumber of factors, including but not Emived o, changes in thewider
econcrmy, finandal md currency merkets, forsign currency exchange rates snd intersst rate movements, The Fund anters
Enee forward contracts which 1o varying degrees repretent & markel rsk in excas of e armount reflectsd on e Fund's
Sraterment of Assets and Uabilides. The notional amownt of the contract represenis the extant of the Fund's partidpadonin
e financial insrumenty, Markst risks asscoiated with ssch coniracts ariss dus 1o the possible reowsman s in foreign
CurTenoy eechang s rates underhing Teese Imstruments,

Oither market and credit riges indude the possibiny that thers may be an Figuid market for the contracts, that the change
i thea vl of the contract may not directly correlate with dhanges in the value of the underlying currentiss o thae the
counterparty 1o o forward contract defaults on it obiigation to perform under the terms of the contract, The Fund's
exponune bo oss due 1o counterpaty non-perfonmance on open futures, lonwands, swip and cptions conmracts islimited o
the unrealiped appeeciabion inherent in such finencisl instrurnents which are recognized in the Staternent of Assets and
Liabsdlities,

Credit Risk

Cradit risk represants: the potentia loss that the Fund would incur iF the counterparties, fallad to perform pursuant to the
terms of thedr chligations to the Fund, For exchange-traded contracts, the emcharge acts a5 the gounterparty to specific
trarsactions and, therefore, besrs the risk of delivery to and from counterparties of specific posiions The Fund's
management doss not consder thak credt risk refated bo open derivartive contracts will have matedal adverse effect on the
financial conditicen of the Fund.

Mthough the Manager monitors the Custodian and befieves it to bean appropriate austodian, there [ no guarantes that
this or ey cusodian that the Fund may use from tme bo tim e, will not become insoheent, which could lead to losses for
e Fund.

‘While both the LS, Banknuptoy Code and the Securithes Investor Protection Act of 1570 sedk to protect customer property
i the evant of a falure, insclvency or liguidat on of an instiouton, there is nocortainty that, in the event of a fallure of an
Institution that has custody of Fund sssets, the Fund would not incur losses due to Its assets being unavallable for a period
of trmee, wltimately bess than full recorery of its assaty, o both, Because all of the Fund's cash is in custody with & single
Instiution, such logses could be sgnificant and could materdaly impar the abllity of the Furd to adhiewe its investment
ocbjactve, The Fund is sl ject to credt risk o the axtent thar this irstitution may be unabde to Tl its chigations bo reapay
amounts owed,

Ligesefity Risk
Irmastors should be aware that the value of Units righ fall 8 well as rise, mpesirnantin the Fund involees o dagrea of risk;
theve can be no assurance that the Fund's imvestrment ob jective will be achieed,

Tha Fund is exposed to dally repurchase of fts Lints but manag ement belleves that the Fund has sufficient rescurces o
st the present and foresesatls needs of iTs business cperations Bnd, iT necessery, the liquidity o fund repurchases and
achieve a market position appropristely reflecing o smaller capital base. This posidon & monfiored contfnualty by
FriBRSArTIANE Bo andare that the Fund had the abdEny bo mest it obligations,

Thea Trustes, after comultstion with the Menager, may suspend the isance and repurchass of units and payments in
respact of uch orarsactions in any craumeancess whare the aladation of the Underlying Fund's Mel Asset Valus per unit
is sugpended, The Trustees will inform unitholders of such a suspendon as soon as practicable afver It is imposed o Efbed.,
Subseription applications and repurchase notiees cannal be withdrawn during such suspension and will be processed for
the next Dealing date. All Unitholders of the Fund will be promptly notifed in writing of any such suspension and will be
promptly notifed upon terrrination of such suspension,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

FIMANCTAL RISK PAANAGEMENT [¢ontinued)

Corrancy Risk

The Lt price of U0 Class Linits [5 deterrined in USD, and the Undt peice of JPY Hedged Qass Units B detarmined in
learese Yer while the Fund is dencrminasted in U5 dellars, The Fund, however, may imes aportion, or all of, its asetsin
cther urrencias, oF in instruments dencmenated in none lapaness Yan of non-US Dollar curmencies, the prives of which will
b determined with reference 1o aich non-kpaness Yen or nen US Dollar currancied. The valie of the Fund's sssats wil
fNuchiate with lapanese Yen exdhange rates as well o5 the price changes of {ts irnsestrnencs im the various local markets and
turrenties

The Fund also may wilize cptions and forward contrects to hadge against asrency fluctuations, but there con be no
sesurance that such hedging transec fons wil be elfective, and such technigues ental costs and additonal risks,

Tha insestrnent manager monitors the Fund's currency expomurs on a daly basis,
BCRFOAWAN G5

The Manager andfor its dalegates ray bormow mores for the acoount of the Fund presfded that icwill not borraw mon ey
if, o @ result of such boroning, the aggragate amount of cutstanding bormowirgs effected on bathall of the Fund would,
Ervemadintaly following such borrowing, sceed 108 of the valus of its et sdsets, sawe that this it may be smteaded
ternparanity for @ peni od not excesding 13 months in special sinuations inchuding, without Smitation, amerger of the Fund
with ancther series trust, imeestment fund or sther type of coflective invesrment schame,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the nerrnal course of business, the Trustes on behall of the Fund may anter into contracts that contain a varisty of
representations and warrantes and which prodde general indemnifications. The general indemeifcations apply not enly
o the sbtent such represmtations snd waranties ore untrue but 850 may cower third parties such o the Fund's
Adrirestrator, Auditor of Fvesiment Manager for claims related 1o the senvioes parformed for tha Fund, The Trostes's
masmum expoaure under any sudh errangemients is unknown, 88 exposure only arises 1o the extent future claims that
e el ot GocurTed are rade against the Trustes, However, bated on axperience, the Trustes sxpects the sk of less o
b ramobe,

HIBSECUENT EVENTS

Manazament parformed & whsequent svents raiey up 1o June 17, 2020 which is the date tha Bnamcial sratements wea's
avalable tobe isswad,

Effactive lanuary 1, 2020 through June 17, 2030, there were subsoriptions of LED 2,477,278 and there were redemptions
of LISEH5,342, 557 in respect of JIFY Hadged (s Units. Thare were distributions.of nil in respect of IPY Hedged Oass Uit

Effactive Jarnaey 1, 2020 threugh June 17, 3020, there wers subsoiptions of LSD 22,756,542 and there were redamptions
of LSl 19,827, 287 in respect of USD Jass Units, There were distributionsof nil in respect of LED Class Units,

CONID-18

On Mardh 11, 2020 the Warld Hedth Organimtion dedared the coronavirus disesse 2019 [SCOVID -157) a panderric,
Uncarta by £arnairm arcurd (i) thelength of the disruption, and [71] the impact of tha COVID19 onglobal markets,
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2021
137,929,451.55 15,024,655,157
3,817,561.89 415,847,017
134,111,889.66 14,608,808,141
6,662,496
162,798
16.64 1,813

15,624
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2020 31
2020 2019
5,628,385 613,100 3,938,928 429,067
2,851,607 310,626 3,190,108 347,498
70,125 7,639 71,250 7,761
8,550,117 931,364 7,200,286 784,327
8,550,117 931,364 7,200,286 784,327
148,200 16,143 146,480 15,956
79,840 8,697 124,271 13,537
1,643,547 179,032 2,462,391 268,228
1,871,587 203,872 2,733,142 297,721
480,000 2020 31
2019 31
480,000 480,000 52,286 480,000 52,286
6,198,530 675,206 3,987,144 434,320
6,678,530 727,492 4,467,144 486,606
8,550,117 931,364 7,200,286 784,327
17 2020
129332
108.93
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2020 31
2020 2019
5,628,385 613,100 3,938,928 429,067
2,851,607 310,626 3,190,108 347,498
70,125 7,639 71,250 7,761
8,550,117 931,364 7,200,286 784,327
1 0.109 1 0.109
1 0.109 1 0.109
8,550,118 931,364 7,200,287 784,327
148,200 16,143 146,480 15,956
79,840 8,697 124,271 13,537
1,643,547 179,032 2,462,391 268,228
1,871,587 203,872 2,733,142 297,721
480,000 2020 31
2019 31
480,000 480,000 52,286 480,000 52,286
6,198,531 675,206 3,987,145 434,320
6,678,531 727,492 4,467,145 486,606
8,550,118 931,364 7,200,287 784,327
17 2020
129332
108.93
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2020 31
2020 2019
19,213,975 2,092,978 22,335,065 2,432,959
19,213,975 2,092,978 22,335,065 2,432,959
(1,183,017) (128,866) (1,276,979) (139,101)

(15,585,538)  (1,697,733) (19,056,557)  (2,075,831)
(15,764) 1,717) (20,971) (2,284)
(228,510) (24,892) (161,343) (17,575)
(17,012,829)  (1,853,207) (20,515,850)  (2,234,792)

2,201,146 239,771 1,819,215 198,167
10,240 1,115 (53,798) (5,860)
10,240 1,115 (53,798) (5,860)

2,211,386 240,886 1,765,417 192,307

2,211,386 240,886 1,765,417 192,307

2,211,386 240,886 1,765,417 192,307

108.93
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2020 31
¢ >y >y ¢ >y > c > o D
480,000 52,286 2,221,727 242,013 2,701,727 294,299
1,765,417 192,307 1,765,417 192,307
31 480,000 52,286 3,987,144 434,320 4,467,144 486,606
2,211,386 240,886 2,211,386 240,886
31 480,000 52,286 6,198,530 675,206 6,678,530 727,492
108.93
2020 31
2020 2019
2,201,146 239,771 1,819,215 198,167
10,240 1,115 (53,798) (5.860)
2,211,386 240,886 1,765,417 192,307
339,626 36,995 1,074,174 117,010
(861,555) (93,849)  (1,182,743) (128,836)
1,689,457 184,033 1,656,848 180,480
1,689,457 184,033 1,656,848 180,480
3,938,928 429,067 2,282,080 248,587
5,628,385 613,100 3,938,928 429,067

108.93
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2020 31
309GT
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2020 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC
IFRS 16 2019
2020 31 2019 31
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IFRS 9

2018
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IFRS 9

2018
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2018

IAS 18
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JPY GBP SGD
2020 31
2019 31 10
2020 2019
JPY 36,000 54,000
GBP 76,000 95,000
SGD 15,000 56,000
EUR 2,000
2020 31 2020
5,628,385 5,628,385
2,851,607 2,851,607
70,125 70,125
148,200 148,200
79,840 79,840
1,643,547 1,643,547
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2019 31 2019

3,938,928 3,938,928

3,190,108 3,190,108

71,250 71,250

146,480 146,480

124,271 124,271

2,462,391 2,462,391

2020 31 2020 31
2020 31 a
@ ®) ®

) ¢ ¢ C
4,939,036 686,456
2,265,335 991,951

6,464,511 179,247
1,801,198 137,386
115,458 7,001
16,010,138 179,247 1,822,794
2019 31 2019 31
2019 31 a
@ o) ®

) ¢ ¢ ¢
4,735,296 339,775
9,478,941 1,253,147
2,634,320 307,671
2,071,148 549,065
136,852 12,733
19,056,557 2,462,391

(a
(b
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MNIEKO® AM GLOBAL CAYALAN LTD
CONSOLIDATEDRD STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT M MARCH a0
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e

15935008
1 1940,108
71.2%

TAML2EE

T200,256

146480
124,271
246230

Pste 200
Asseis
Cmrrend Assets
Cash aid cash equivalmts -1 LG b
Accoim s Fecervabile 2 BRY GOT
Accrued moome end propaid expense T0125
Tolal Currenl Asaels 8,550,117
Total Mon- Currenid Assels
Tolal Assels ] 8.550,117
Liabilities aml Eqisity
Current Liabilities
Accruod expenscs amd deferred income 5 148 2040
Accoumls payable THEAD
Amounis peyable 10 group underiakngs L 1543547
Tatal Current Liabilities 15715587

2733142

Equlty

Caplital and Reserves Atiribuiable to Equity
Halders of the Company

Share caplital (31 par value, 450,000 shares
sl horered, 480600 shares =med and AR WA
odtstan<mg st 31 March 2020 and 1019

A8 0

1587144

4467144

Retained earmings 6,198,530
Total Edquity 6.675 430
Total Liablkites and Equity 5 8580117

7200256

The anaeved noles from 1 bo % Fomm an integral pan of these fancial statements.

The financial stabements on pages & Lo |7 ware approved by tbe Board of Directors on & Aogust 2000 ancd asthocesed for s and

sigreed on s hehalf by

Company regisered nuember: 179332
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MNIKED AM CLOBAL CAYAMAN LTD
COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Mok 2030 w9
Asaris
Currenl Assels
Cash and cash equivalents ] 5628 383 © ER LR
Accounts recenable 2R 607 3,150 108
Axenaed inooene and propasd exponss T0125 71,250
Total Curienl Asiéls 555,117 TR0, 86
Mom - Currenl Assels
Investmen i subsidiary 3 | 1
Taotal Mon-Curvent Assels | 1
Total Assets 3 8550118 § T.RMLIET
Liabilities aml Eqity
Cirrent Lialilities
Accraed expenses and deferred mcone L1 4820 5 148 480
Accourts payable Tgan 12437
Amoints payable to group andenakings & 1.643 547 2462391
Total Current Liabdlijes 1,571,587 2,733,142
Equisy
Capital and Feserves Abribatatde o Equlty
Halders of the Company
Share capilal {31 par value, 420,000 shares mthorized,
A0, shares tssped and oulstsnding # 31 Mardh AR D ABT M)
2000 and 2009)
Retained eamings 6,198,531 3087045
Taolal Exuity 6678 53] 4467, 145
Total Liabikities and Equity 3 580,118 3§ T 200,287

The amnemied notex from 1 1o 8 form an mlegral pant of thess fmndcsl dalonmis.

The finuncisl statements on peges & Lo |7 were approved by ibe Board of Directors on & Aogust 20030 and ssthorised for isase and
signeed on its bohalf by

B tia]
W=t A

Company registered member: 129352
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MIERG AN GLOBAL CAYMAN LTI

ETATEMENT OF COMSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR EXNDED 31 MARCH 1020

Olpratiingg Hevenises
Investment management and adviscry fees fram third partics

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Sub-advisary fees with thind parties
Sub-advisory fees with group undertakings
Adwchit fees
(e operating and adminisirative expoises
Total oporaling exponscs

Operating Profit

Oilser [neome / (Expenses)
Cither ncome{expense), Net foreign echange gain (loss)
Total other expenses

Profit Before Incoane Tax
Income tax expense

Profil atftributabde o equlty holders of the parent

Cether Comprehensive lncome for the year
Total Compreliensive Incame for e vear

All the Group's operalins are chssifiod & continusng.

The anmeved mobes from 1 1o 8 Form an anlegral pan of these fmncial statememts.

Noke
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2020 2014
19213972 11335063
19213975 335065
{1 AB3.00Th (1,276,975

(15585538 {1 056.257)
(15, 764) 20571
CXEE 51000 (161 388}
(17,00 2,55 (20,51 5.850)
2.201,144 1815212
10,240 (3,758}
10,240 (53,790
2211346 1,765,417
2211384 1765417
22011384 17685417
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MIEED AM GLOBAL CAVAAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 1020

Nte {”,u':’l; ':;".‘r'r'.'lf:‘ Total
Balunce at | April 2014 T Wiaoh 8 2231ET s rouicrt
Net profit . 1765417 [I6sALT
Dividend pibd 5 i :
Balunce at 31 March 2619 5 W00 8 39sTidd s ademau
Nt prefit : 2211386 2211386
Dividend paid ;
Balanre a1 31 March 2020 5 w000 5 Ges 5 GeTESI0

Thie anmeved moles from 1 ta % form an integral pant of these finwncial statements
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Ml 200 p L
Cash Fhows fram Gperating Activities
Operating Prafit 4 2,300,184 1819215
Addfusdmenis for
Nt foreign exchmnge loss 10,240 {53,758)
mlmﬂ cash flows before movements in working 2371386 L6417
Chamges In operaiing ssaets and labilites
Diecrease | (imcresse) in recenvables IAHED6 1,074,174
(Docrcase} | Increase in payables (B61_.555) (1.182,743)
et Cash Ceneraled from Opsrating Activitlies 1,689 457 1,656,548
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Dividends pakd -
et Cash from Flmamcing Activitles -
Mol Increase [m Cash and Cash Equivalends 1,689 457 1,655, 548
Cash mnd cush equivalo iz, beginming of the yoar 1058 98 2R 080
Cash and Cash Equivalents. End of the Year -1 625 388 1,508 928

The anmexwed modes from 1 ta & form an integral part of these fencie] shabements.
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MIKKG AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXDED M MARCH 1020

Naote 1= Genernl Infornoilion

Nikka AM Global Covman Lid *the Company”™) snd fis subsidiary g ether “the Oroup™) are incomorsied @ d domialed o the
Cayman Islamds. The wddress of the registered office is PO Box 300GT, Ugland House, South Churdh Street, Grand Cayman,
Cayman slands. The peincipal activities of the Group snd Company durimg e Year were the provision of mvestiment advice and
invesimant management services to thind paribes and other group membeas. These pon-dawory finsncial aaements have been
proparcd o asd the preparation of consolidated financial $alommis for the intomeedinle parent company_

Note ! — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles
The principal accounting palicies adopled are s out below,

Hasls of preparation

Thie Group and Company's financial statemenis have been prepared i accondamos with Inlem atiensl Fisancil Reponing Standards
as adopted by the European Union (IFRS5s as sdopted by the FU) and [FRIC interpretations applicsble fo companies reporting
mniber IFRS. As ml 31 March 20200 the Compuey bad adopted all IFR S mnd mterpretations that had been i sased by the Intomational
Accounting Stamdands Bosnd ("LASET) and Imtemations] Financial Reporting Inapretations Committes (“IFR1C), and endorsed
by the EL. The accounting policies et out below bave been appdicd consistenily 1o all periods presented m these financial
statenmvents. IFRSs comprise accounting sandards saed by the 1ARE snd its predocessor body as well as interpretations fssued by
the IFRIC and its predecessor bady.

1 preparing s set of fifncal Qalemnenls, he Coipany prepared plassble downsde soendfros sich as redudlon i reveniies
due 1o ghobal market declmes reaalting from the pasdemic. Managerment is satisfied thit the resuis of these scenanios supports the
going conoem basis of preparation.

Basls of consolidation

Subsacharmes are entitics conlrodled by the Group. Control exists when the Group bis the power 1o govern the financial snd operating
policies of an enlity =0 as 10 obtain beneffis from its activilies, In assessing contral, the Group takes into considertion potantial
valing rights that sre corantly exercisable. The aoquisition dale is the dale on which control is irmsferred 1o the soguirer, The
finencial stalemsents of subsidiarics are inchided m the conselidaed fnameial stabensenmts from the date thal control commienoes
wnlil the dale that control cesses. Losses applicable to the non-conirolling inlerests in 3 subsidiary are sllocmted to the nom-
comtrolling milereds evan if doing o caises the non-controlling intereds to bave a deficil balasee.

ew seoounding standards adopied
IFRS 16 Liease Accounting 14 dfective from | Jauasy 2019, The congany has go bases and tharefoee the atandarnd has no elfoc
o e company”s financial stalements.

Measurenent convention
The financial gstements bave been prepared under the hidonical oo convention

Esdlenates aied asamplions

The preparution of financial dalements requires managemenl to make edimabes and asasmplions that affect the wnoants reported
fior asscts and Habitkes as a1 the balance sheet date snd e ssnounts reponted for revenues snd expenses during the vear. The mature
of gst imation mesns that actual oubcomes could differ from those estimptes. The asumptions snd estimates, which are continuoushy
reviewed, are based on past experience arsd other factors, inchading expeciations regarding likely developments in the futare. Al
31 Bdarch 2020 aed 2019 there wers no mstenal camales o sssumplions.

Accounts receivable

Accoiints peceivable melude amounts due for mamagemenl, advisory amd performance Tees and ansounts due from cugomens and
athers. All accounts receivable sre repavable on demand or within one yesr. They are recorded in the balance sheet at codl, redisced
by appropoiate aflowmoes for ctimated imecoverabile smounds, and they are mieresd bearng.

Accounts payable

Avccounts paysble mchide smounts due for subsmbdisory services and parformance fees and nmonts due 1o vendors @nd oltsers.
Al cconinds payable are classafied according 1o the subsance of the contradctual amangonm! eeioied mto. They are pajable on
demmni or within one year and are reconded on the balance dheet at cosl, Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured,
inleredt free and hanve mo Fioed Lermas of repayment

Cashy aned cash equivalents

Cash and cash cqaivmlents comprse aish in banks and in hand end shord dem deposits with an ongmal matenty of three months
o less and forelgn asrencics bedd by the Group and Conspany, For the puspeses of the cash flow statement, cash el cash
equivabants conssst of cash and cash equivalents 25 defined sbove, net of cutstmeding bk overdrafts.

Operaling revenses

Operaling revenues inclide commissons and invedment mamagement], invedmenl adhasory and perf o fees. Oy
revenues ane mesaned ol the Fair value of e consideratson recerved o meceivable Tor sarvices wmlm Ih:nnrmd I:{l.lhkﬂf
busmess, et of discounts, il fees, VAT mnd other sales refated taxes,

IFES 15, Revenise from Comtracts with Customers replaced [AS 18 Revense and introdaced & five e approads 16 fevenue
recognition; 1) identifying the contract with the cudiomer; inp Ldﬂ:l'l'}tng the ]'u'ﬁmm obligaisons; iii} identify the comtract price
I associated revenoe, ivh allocate the consadoralion 1o the relevant porfs ¢ obligations, and %) recognising the revenue as the

performance obligations are salisfied. )
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXDED M MARCH 1020

Thie Company has applied [FRS 15 retrospectively, bad has determined that dhere is no adpustmeni 1o the retamed camings a5 o |
Agril 2008, Compantive information has not bean sffected snd therefore no restatement is required.. The Company hasunderiaken
a review of its contmcts with customeers and concluded thal there tsno impadt on the wary in which it recognises its revenucs asno
clemnend of e revenue relles on estimates or B subgeet 10 reversal of significant restaicment.

Commisgons and mvestment managonant and advisory fees and sssocialed charges are rocogrised when the sorvioes concomed
are rendered. Irvesiment management and advisory fets are caleulated 45 aparcentage of asses under managemeanl. Commissons
are recognisod on @ rade dale basis, caboulated on o percentage of the sike. Porfformumoc focs are recognised i the paried in which
Ehey beconte dad and collecsble.

Operatlng expenses
Operaling expanses are sccounted for when they become payable

Dividends
Edquity dividends to the sharcholbder of the Group are recognised as u liability & the period during which they are declared and
appraved,

Foreign carremcies
The finctional and presontalional currency of the Growp and Comgasy i US dollars (5).

Trans&ctions in cusrencies othear than US doltars are reconded o1 the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the imnssations
Al cech balance sheet dafe, mmdary assds md lisbililies that are demomineted in forcign onmoncics sre retrmmsbabed af the mies
provailing on ke balmee sheel date. Mon-monetary assets and lisbilities carried a8 fuir value thal sre denominated m Foroign
currencics arc transiabed sl the rales prevailing at the dabe when Fair valae was delermined. Cains and losses ansing on reiranslation
are included in met profi or Joss for the perdod, eccept for exchange differences arising on non-monetary ssscts and liabilities where
the chamges in fuir vahae are recogoised dircctly inogaily.

Finamncisl indrumenls

IFRS 9. Financial Instruments replaced the classification and measurement contaimed in 1AS 3% Financial Instrumests: Recommition
anwd Measurement (1A% 39), In accordance with IFRS 9, the Company’s financial assets have been reclassified af amodised cost,
Taie value through cther comprehensive ineome of Far value tirough prolit or ks, The Company bas applicd IFRS # retrespectively,
with the Etention of including sy required adjustment 1o retained camings 25 3 | Apnl 2005 Comparstive mformation bas nol
been resated,

Thie vast majority of the Comgasy’s financial mstruments are cash and receivables which are messured af mmonised cost.

Followiag the Company's adoplion of IFRS 900 1 Apeil 200% ihe Company his evaluaied potential crodi Joses on 3l fnanaal
nsets Lhat are meenamred 8 mmortized cost. Faclors considered im determinmg whether o defanl is likely or posdble inclode whether
a pryment s overdue (and the lmgth of that ponod), sny known deterioration in the oredst quality’ of o clientGounterpaty or other
ismmes that coull sdversely affect 8 client’s'counterparty’s credit quality,

For financial assets where there i no known isaves affedting crodit quality, expooted onedil lesses are acalculated based on the bosass
that are expected tobe inourmed over o rollmg twelve-moeith peri od. Given the natuse of the Company's fimncial assets {i.e. mostly
cash l bank), there is & very bow credit ridc. The Company is also considering the use of money markel funds o increase
diversificatsom and further reduce credit risk

For any financial asscts where the contractual paymsent is moce than 30 days past doe. the defaull posilion is 1o axaeme an increise
in eredil sk However, defaalt levels in the padt have besn immatenial snd there were po foe receivaliles past die asat 31 Mafch
H2.

Invesimends in subsidiaries
Invedments im subsddiaries are stabed i tee parenl company®s bakande sheet ul cosd less any provigions for impammmil

Note 3 - Investment in Subsidiary
COMPANY

Ar 31 March 2000 and 31 March 201% ithe Company had an Evesiment of 31, In the opinion of the directors, the Companys
investment is not impaired, Details of the investment are as follows.

Sumbser, class and

Country of perceniaze of dhares
Invesler Incorpor ation Frincipal sctivity held b the Company
Cayinan 1 O share
PR AR oy | LI Islunds Ky e o 51, 100%

Note 4 — Taxation

Al 31 March 2020 and 3019, the tax rate applicalde to the Gromip and the Company's profils i (# becanse thore i no s levied
an Cayman kshinds companies.
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Mote 5 - Financial Risk Factors

The Group and Company’s financial instramnsents comprise cash mvd cash equivalents and receivable and payable balances thal
artse from i1s daily operalions. All cash and cash equivalnts are carmiod al ool which i considened o approvinmte to Fair vahse
ki 1o the shor term maturity of these financial mamments, The main risks associated with the Group snd Company’s financial
assete and Babilities s st oul below;

Credie risk

Credit nisk = defmed as the nsk of ol b due o o counterparty’s faihire o honour its obligation principally i relation 1o
trasissctions where the Growp of Company provides goods o services on defierred tenms and whare it invesds or doposils aumplus
cash, The Group or Company do nol belicve thal they are materially exposed 1o credit rid ns its smbes debéors are managed group
fimds amd therefore managomant end performance fecs receivable are govemod by its agreoments with these fimds. To mitigate
amy resadual risk of these aseta failing to be deliverad. the Group and Company ensure that the terms of these spreements in
relation (o payments of | & % mnd per ¢ Fres are adbvered o by moniloring its 3ged debbor analysis against the sgreed
servioe bevel agreamants.

The Group and Company sdopis the policy of dealmg with cadtomens of sppropmate credit history. For olber fimancial assets, the
Croanp v Congpany adapts the policy of dealimg with finaneial inituisons snd olber counterpantics with high credit rtings. There
are no finangial assets pasl dus amd £ or enpaired 258 31 March 2020 a0 2009, Tradk recervables are due o least quarerty, sad are
mormally seitled within 30 days of their due date. There ane no overdue trade reconvables ot the balmot shod date.

Further, with regard o band: doposits, the Group mnd Compamy only depessits money with approved cmmterpartses on agroed tams

Mar ki risk

Mwrkcet risk {or systemic risk) is defined as that risk which & common to an enlire class of assels or linbslitics whereby their walse
an Miduale simply boomse of ooonomic changes of otho ovents thal smpad large portions of the mwkd. The Group and
Company do pol believe that they are exposed o material market nisk as the assets the Group and Company mamage are held by
ared for the benefit of fumd hodders through sepamle lezal entitics.

Currency risk

Cusrency risk iz definod as the risk that the vahae of Group or Company assets md labilities denomisnated in currencies other than
the functional aerency of the Group or Company will change in value dae 1o movements in forcign exchange rates. The Group
and Company are exposed lo cumency risk misng from vanious currency exposures, primarily with resped to the Japaness Yen
(IPY). Sterling Pound (SBP) and Singapore Dollar {3000, The Oreup and Company™s fee indome is received mainty 1n USD and
JEY, A 31 March 2020 and 2009, had these comenci¢s strengthened'weakened by 10% againg the USD with all other vanshles
mchuding tax rabe being held constant, the Group and Company's prafil befiore tax for the fnancisl yoar would have boen
Bigheeribower ms @ el of currency transkalion losscsieains on e ranainmng cusrency denomisated cash balances, trade receivables
e pqyiilﬁ; bwy the below amounts.

Currency 2020 2009
(Rounded 1o nearest § thousandy
Y 5 3,000 5 54,000
GEP T, (e 05 DM
20D 15,000 h1ALLT
EUR 2,000 .

Liquidtity risk and Mnancial solvency risk

Liquadity risk is defined as the risk thet the Group or Compmy will not be sble to meeel its financial obligations as they fll due
The Group and Company’s appresch (o managing this risk B b enaare thal il has saffcient Hguidity to nseet i3 Habilnies when
e, both umder nonmisl amd sressed conditions

Capital managemeni
The Group and Comipsey capital position i% moailored on an oogomg bass 1o owsre that it is adequate. Thioe are no oxomally

impidid capital requiremionts.

Falr Yalue of Financlal Indrumenis
The fair values of fimncial assets and fiancial Babilitics that are tded in active markets are based on qeoled marke prices o
deaber price quodations. For all other financial insfruments, the Group ddamine fir valies usng other valistion tedmigaes.

For financial instnaments that trade mifrequently and have little price transparency. fair value is less obgective, and requires varying
degrees of judgement depending oo liquidity. conceniratim, uncetainty of market factors, pricing assumglions end ofher nisks
affecting the specific instrument.

The tehle below apalyees finmncil msnaments. into a fair value hiemrchy based on the vabaation techmique used 1o debermine fair
value

& Level 1 quooled prices funadpsted i netive markels for sdendicnl wssets or liabilities

® Level 20 inguits other than quoted prices included withim Level 1 ths are observable for the sssel o lisbility, either direcly
(i.e.. a5 prices) or indirecly {i.e., derived from prices)

®  Level 3t dmpuls for the mesel of liability that are nol based on observable mket data (unobservable mgauls),
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Year ended 3 March 2428 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal 2620
Aimeli 5 ] 5 5

Cash med cash exquivalent LH18385 - - 54628385
Accamis reccivable . 1851607 = 2851807
Acerued meome and propaid expense . 0125 . To1xs
Liabilithes

Acerued expense and defomed income = 148 10 = 148 )
Acdoumls payable . TR0 . TREM
Accounls payable 1o group

- e . 16435407 L 1683, 547
Yoear ended 3 March 2009 Leved | Lawe] 3 Larvel 3 Tatal 3015
Asets H H 5 H

Cash mxd cash equivalms 1938528 - - 1938928
Acooumnls receivable - 190,108 - 3090108
Aveniad meome and propaid expense i 71250 H 71,250
Llubsilfibes

Acerued expense and deferred income . 146480 . 146,480
Accoumlis payable - 124371 - 124271
Accounls payable to group

BriAsaaly - 1AEL39] - 1462391

Al finamcial assds and lmbslitics we camod al histoncl cost. The fasr valuces of all finmncial msds and labglilios are smlar o

Eheir carryimg vahics ewing to thebr short kerm nature.
Note 6 - Helated Party Transactions
Transections between the Group and Company snd relsted parties are dischsed below:

Debilor as Credilor as af
Oprrating Operaiing at 31 March 31 March
Yoenr emded 31 March 2020 Hevenues Expemses (n) 20 (b} 202 by
Nikko Assel Mmnagomml Amencas, Inc. 5 = 5 4 939 085 5 = 5 686,458
Hikko Assct Management Europe Lid. - 1,165335 - #1551
NWikko Assel Mmnagemant Co, Lid. - 6464 511 179,247 .
Nikko Asset Mamagement Asia Lid, - 1500, 198 - 157384
Hikko Aszcl Mmagemant Hong Kong - 115458 - 7000
Talsl 3 5 1601038 5 179,247 5181
Drelstor as Credlilor as an
Operating Opirating al 31 March A1 March
Year ended 31 March 2019 Hevenies Expeises (a) 2019 (b} 2019}
Hikko Assel Mmnagemanl Amenicas, [nc. i = 3 A e 5 = -1 A5DTTS
Wikl Asset Management Europe Lid, - SATRM - 1253, 147
Nikko Asct Mmnagemant Co, Led. - A3 30 = 07 671
Mikko Asset Management Asia Lid - TOTLE4R - Se9.063
Nikko Asscl Managemant Hong Keng . 136,852 . 12.733
Talzl 3 3 IOEG5FT 3 5 AR
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{a) Operaling experses paid (o relsted parties we payable under mvestment management agreements and are for fland
management servaces,

(b} The amounts cutdmding are unsecured and will be setiled in cash, No gusrmtees have been given or received. No provisions
v boan made for doubtful delbs in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

Nikko Assct Mmnzgomonl Amaricas, Ing., Mikke Asscl Management Ewrope Lid., Nikko Asecl Managemont Asia Led md RNikkoe
Asud Management Hong Bong arc [ellew subssdiarics. Mikko Assat Managanant Co, Lid ex an imdicect sharchalder of the
aforementioned subsdiaries,

Note T - Ultinede Holding Company

Thie Greap is & wholly owned sabsidiary of Nikko AM Global Holdings Lid, is smmediste parent mndeniaking, a company which
is registered im England end Wales.

In the opinion of the direcbors the altimate parent company. and controllimg pany. ts Sumdteme Mian Trest Holdings, Inc.. a
company incorporsted in Jepen, Financial statensents for Sumitoma Mitsai Trust Holdings, Inc, are svailable 1o the public from

the Investor Relatsons Office, Financial Plasming Depariment, Samitomo Mitsal Trust Huldq:. Ime. L=dl, M:.l‘uurul.th Chiyoda-
ko, Tokoyo 100-8233, Japan. Copies of the anmeal repoet can be viewed or retrieved firom

Note § — Subsequent Events

Subseduant 16 the sdstoment of finmaal postion dat e, there were no cvents which had m impsa on the consolidated and mdividual
Tknancisl stabenvents of the Company.
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2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
6,905,864 752,256 5,628,385 613,100
2,811,372 306,243 2,851,607 310,626
23,377 2,546 70,125 7,639
9,740,613 1,061,045 8,550,117 931,364
9,740,613 1,061,045 8,550,117 931,364
120,087 13,081 148,200 16,143
82,785 9,018 79,840 8,697
1,913,594 208,448 1,643,547 179,032
2,116,466 230,547 1,871,587 203,872
480,000 2020 30

2020 31
480,000 480,000 52,286 480,000 52,286
7,144,148 778,212 6,198,530 675,206
7,624,148 830,498 6,678,530 727,492
9,740,614 1,061,045 8,550,117 931,364

108.93
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2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
6,905,864 752,256 5,628,385 613,100
2,811,372 306,243 2,851,607 310,626
23,377 2,546 70,125 7,639
9,740,613 1,061,045 8,550,117 931,364
1 0.109 1 0.109
1 0.109 1 0.109
9,740,614 1,061,045 8,550,118 931,364
120,087 13,081 148,200 16,143
82,785 9,018 79,840 8,697
1,913,594 208,448 1,643,547 179,032
2,116,466 230,547 1,871,587 203,872
480,000 2020 30
2020 31
480,000 480,000 52,286 480,000 52,286
7,144,148 778,212 6,198,531 675,206
7,624,148 830,498 6,678,531 727,492
9,740,614 1,061,045 8,550,118 931,364
108.93
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2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
8,325,309 906,876 19,213,975 2,092,978
8,325,309 906,876 19,213,975 2,092,978
(488,340) (53,195) (1,183,017) (128, 866)
(6,365,716) (693,417) (15,585,538)  (1,697,733)
(9,058) (987) (15,764) 1,717)
(116,613) (12,703) (228,510) (24,892)
(6,979,727) (760,302) (17,012,829)  (1,853,207)
1,345,582 146,574 2,201,146 239,771
24,635 2,683 10,240 1,115
24,635 2,683 10,240 1,115
1,370,217 149,258 2,211,386 240,886
1,370,217 149,258 2,211,386 240,886
1,370,217 149,258 2,211,386 240,886

108.93
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( ) C ) ( ) « ) ( ) « )
2019 31 480,000 52,286 3,987,145 434,320 4,467,145 486,606
2,211,386 240,886 2,211,386 240,886
2020 31 480,000 52,286 6,198,531 675,206 6,678,531 727,492
(424,600)  (46,252) (424,600)  (46,252)
1,370,217 149,258 1,370,217 149,258
2020 30 480,000 52,286 7,144,148 778,212 7,624,148 830,498

108.93
2020 30
2020 30 2020 31

1,345,583 146,574 2,201,147 239,771

24,635 2,683 10,240 1,115

86,982 9,475 339,626 36,995

244,878 26,675 (861,555) (93,849)

1,702,078 185,407 1,689,458 184,033

(424,600) (46,252)
(424,600) (46,252)

1,277,478 139,156 1,689,458 184,033

5,628,386 613,100 3,938,928 429,067

6,905,864 752,256 5,628,386 613,100

108.93
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2020 30
309GT
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2020 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC
1ASB IFRS
2020 30 2020 31
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IFRS 15
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2018

IAS 18
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IFRS 9 1AS 39 1AS 39
IFRS 9 ) ) )
2018 IFRS 9
2018 IFRS 9
12
30
2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
100
2020 30 2020 31
2020 30 2020 31
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30
JPY GBP SGD
2020 30
2020 31 10
2020 30 2020 31
JPY 38,000 36,000
GBP 76,000 76,000
SGD 45,000 15,000
EUR 4,000 2,000
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2020 30 2020 30
2020 30 a
® ® ®
C O C O C O C O

702,454 140,109

4,112,350 1,099,130

643,733 231,193

796,864 434,732

110,316 8,430

6,365,717 1,913,594

2020 31 2020 31
2020 31 a
® ® ®
C O C O C O C O

2,660,526 261,856

8,822,358 991,951

2,185,998 245,353

1,801,198 137,386

115,458 7,001

15,585,538 1,643,547

(a
®
100-8233
IR

http://www_smth_jp/en/

140/186



1€))

@

®

Q)

141/186

31

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2021 36,630,142 39 9,012
1965
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2020 12 1,040,000,000 1,132 8,720
(©))
UFJ
2021 405
(O]
2021 173 63

142/186



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

90

@

143/186



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)

®
CINA
)

Q)

UFJ

)

®

UFJ

JSDA

144/186



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

JSDA
)

©)

)

145/186



@

@

®

*

100

146/186

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1.1 1993

1.2
1960

1.3
(a
1993
2020

(b
2020

1.4

1.5 2019 12 10,857
2,886
2020
2020
1.6
2.1

CIMA

CIMA
2.2

2.3

O

(a
(b
(c

147/186



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
2.4 CIMA CIMA

CIMA
2.5 2020
15

CIMA
2.6

3.1

CIMA CIMA CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

3.2

CIMA

CIMA

3.3

(a 80,000 CIMA 100,000

(b

CIMA
3.4

2020 CIMA
CIMA

15

80,000 100,000

148/186



4.1
CIMA
CIMA
4.2 CIMA
(a
(b
(c
«
(e
4.3
21
4.4 2006 12 27
CIMA
5.1
5.2
5.3
CIMA
5.4 CIMA

149/186

CIMA

CIMA

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA
21
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
48
3.2
10



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

CIMA

(a
(b

(c
(d
(e

@i

(A
B 12

(c
CIMA

CIMA

6.1

(a

O

(c

«

CIMA

(A

17

36,585
8,536

150/186

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

CIMA

c

CIMA

24,390 30,488
8,536
42,682



6.2

6.3

(f
@

(h
@

(k

(m

(n

(vii

30

(a

®

(c

«

(f

(9

(h
@i

1925

150

20

(a

O

CIMA

151/186

50

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1907



6.4

(c

(

(e

(f

(9

(h

@i

(k

(a

O

(c

@i

(vi

2016

50

152/186

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

«

(e 50

CIMA
7.1 CIMA CIMA CIMA

7.2
7.1

500
7.3
CIMA CIMA CIMA
CIMA

7.4 7.3 10

7.5 7.3
CIMA
10
7.6
CIMA CIMA

7.7 CIMA 7.9

(a
(b

(c
«

(e
(f

7.8 7.7 CIMA CIMA

(a CIVA
® CIMA
(c
(d CIVA CIMA
7.9 7.7 CIMA
@a b)
a)

(b

(c

153/186



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
(e
.10 CIMA 7.9 CIMA

.11 CIMA CIMA

A2 7.9(d) 7.9(e)

CIMA CIMA
.13 7.9(e)

7.14  7.13
7.15  7.9(d) 7.9(e)

(a CINA CINA CINA
(b CINMA
CINA
c () CINMA CINA

16 7.9(d) 7.9(e) 7.15 CINA
CIMA

17 7.15 CIMA
(a CIVA
(b 94(4)
(c
«
(e 7.9(d) 7.9(e)
.18 CIMA 7.17
7.9
.19 CIMA  7.9(a)

.20 7.17(c)

.21 CIMA CIMA

b)
a)

CIMA
.1 CIMA CIMA CIMA

500

CIMA CIMA CIMA
CIMA

154/186



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
8.5 8.3

CIMA
10
8.6 CIMA CIMA

(a
(b
8.7 CIMA

8.8 CIMA 8.10
(a
(b

(c

(

(e

(f
@

(h

8.9 8.8 CIMA CIMA

(a
€ CIMA

(i CIMA
(iii
(iv CIMA
(Y CIMA
(vi CIMA
(vii
(viii  CIMA CIMA
(b CIMA
(c CIMA
(d CINA
8.10 8.8 CIMA
(a
(b
(c
(¢
(e
8.11 CIMA 8.10 CIMA CIMA

8.12  8.10(d) 8.10(e)
CINA CINA

155/186



EDINETCI I
I o o o o =00
O000oOoOddooooooooOoOaOon
8.13  8.10(e)

8.14 8.13

8.15  8.10(d) 8.10(e)

(a CINA CINA CINA
(b CIMA CINA

c O CIMA CIMA
8.16  8.10(d) 8.10(e)

(a 8.15

(b CINA

CIMA

8.17 8.15 CIMA

(a CINA

(b 94(4)

(c CIMA 8.10(d) 8.10(e)

8.18 CIMA 8.16 CIMA

8.19 CIMA CIMA

(a CINA

O
8.20 CINA  8.10

8.21 CIMA

9.1 CIMA
(a
(b

«
CIMA
9.2 9.1(a) 9.1(d)
CIMA
9.3 CIMA
(a 9.1(a) 9.1(d)
(b
(c
9.4 CIMA

CIMA CIMA
CIMA
(a
156/186



9.5

9.6

(b
(c
@

(e

10 CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

20

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

10.1

11

(a

(b

(c

(a

(b

(c

@

(e

(f

(9

(h
@i

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

11.1

11.2

157/186

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

11.3
(a 14(1)

14(2)

(b

11.4
(a

@i
(i
¢

(c

(

(e

11.5

(a

O

11.6

12
12.1 257

12.2 247 248
(a

O 10

158/186



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(c

13
13.1
2008

CINA
7.17(b) 8.17(b)

13.2

CINA
7.17(c)

13.3

CINA 7.17(d)

13.4

13.5

6.1(1) 6.2(0) 6.3(i) 6.4(e)

14
14.1

O1CY)

2003 11 17

CIMA

14.2  CIMA CIMA

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6 20
CIMA

159/186



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

14.7
(a 13.1

@i

(vii

(vi

O

CIMA

(c
CIMA

(d @@

CIMA

14.8
@a CINA

CIMA
(b

(c

«

14.9

160/186



(a

(b

(c

«

(e

CIMA

21

@i

Gii

(iv

(v

@a

(i

12

Gii

(iv

(v

(vi

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

CIMA

21 (4)

10
Q)

®m

an

50

15

161/186



EDINETCI I
I o o o o =00
O000oOoOddooooooooOoOaOon
(f 21 (5)

@i
50
(i

Giii

@ 21 (6)
21 (D 21 (5

@i
(i
Gii

(h
CIMA

14.10
(a

CIMA

G

(c 26
1411
(a
CIMA CIMA

(b
(c

@
14.12
(a @ (6) CIMA
CINA

® 37

(i
(i
(iv
(v

(vi (xxit) (xxiii) (xXxiv)

162/186



EDINETCI I
I o o o o =00
O000oOoOddooooooooOoOaOon
(vii

(vi
(ix
(xi
(xii

iii

(xiv

(xv

(xvi

(xv
(xviii

(xix
(xx
(xxi

(xx

(xxiii
(A
(B

(xxiv

(A

¢
c

163/186



2020 29
2020 30
2020 30
2020 30
2020 30
2020 12 21

164/186

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

JPY

15

2018 28

12

50

165/186



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1986
WM
2018 28
1933
S
4.7

usb

166/186



15

167/186

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

TRP

TRP

2020 12 31

2020 12 31
2020 12 31

ISA

IESBA 1ESBA

168/186



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1SA

I1SA

2021 18

169/186



EDINETOIOICIC)
O0000000000000000000(E27078)
OOo00000000000000000

Independent auditor®s report

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the
Trustee of TRP US Core Growth Equity Fund

Our opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of TRP US Core Growth Equity Fund (the Fund) as at December 31, 2020, and results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
What we have audited
The Fund’ s financial statements comprise:

the statement of assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2020;

the portfolio of investments as at December 31, 2020;

the statement of operations for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the financial highlights for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’ s responsibilities for

the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fund’ s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements
are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to this
evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Fund.

Auditor’ s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’ s ability to continue as a going concern.
IT we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the FirstCaribbean
International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as Trustee of the Fund in
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this
opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
June 18, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (* the company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2020, the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related
notes including the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons
set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 02 April 2020.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company’ s financial
position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that
could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the
date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company’ s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the company’ s financial resources or
ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the company will continue in
operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director’ s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material

misstatements in the other information.
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Directors”™ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

06 August 2020
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Independent Auditor”s Report

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of TRP US Core
Growth Equity Fund

Our opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of TRP US Core Growth Equity Fund (the Fund) as at December 31, 2019, and results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
What we have audited
The Fund’ s financial statements comprise:

the statement of assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2019;

the portfolio of investments as at December 31, 2019;

the statement of operations for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the financial highlights for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting

policies.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’ s responsibilities for

the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fund' s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements
are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to this
evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Fund.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’ s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Trustee in accordance with
the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or
into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
June 17, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (the “ Company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2019 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company Statement of Financial
Position as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related notes including
the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons set out in note
1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (* ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms

of our engagement letter dated 3 May 2019. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and

appropriate basis for our opinion.

The impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union on our audit

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial
statements. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and related
disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of
these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the company’ s future prospects and
performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are
subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We
applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the company’ s future
prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible
future implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the group or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the group and the company’ s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at
least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the group’ s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the group and company’ s financial
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resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these

respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the group will continue in operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director’ s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.
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Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

2 August 2019
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